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Chief Executive’s Review

LonZim Plc ("LonZim™) has seen a conunuing
recovery 1n the Zimbabwean economy, bulding
improved economic stability  The general
economic activiry levels in Zimbabwe are starting
from a very low base but, encouragingly. chis 1s
growing month on month, achieving a reported
8 19+ growth in GDP 1n 2010

Zimbabwe remains a counrtry wirh srrong
porennial The fundamenrals are stll in place ro
recreare the lisroric levels of economic activiry
that were seen 1n the eighties and ninenes when
Zimbabwe was one of the most successful
economies 1 Africa driven by agnculoure
mining and tourism

Zambabwe has the necessary infrastructure for
apid economic recovery and the workforce
contnues to be one of the most skilled and
licerate 1n Africa The necessary power supply to
support mdustry remains a significant challenge
buc chis 1s also improving as plans to increase
ourput are implemented and further production
capacity comes on-line

During the period LonZim has remained focused
on 1ts core objective to own and develop a range
of strong businesses, build firse class management
teams 1n those businesses and capitahise them as
necessary to be first back to market as the
economy recovers and HTIOWS

From a management perspective, each LonZim
business has a srrong local management team thatc
1s expert 1n its field, and has a good
understanding of their respective markets in
Zimbabwe The Company strives ro attract and
recain quality management and sees this as an
essential element for success An example of this

1s Fungar Makani, the General Manager at
LonZim s Leopard Rock Hortel, winning the best
Private Sector Tourism Manager of the Year
Award ar the Naoonal Annual Tourism Awards
for 2011 The management team across LonZim
are all expenenced and skidlful and we believe
they will be able o drive rhe businesses forward
over the coming years

From a capural investmenr perspective, LonZim's
subsidiartes are coming to the end of therr
redevelopment phase Each business has had che
necessary capital investment required to position
thern ar the forefront of their marker Notably.
the refurbishment of the Leopard Rock Horel has
developed the propercy into an nternartional
standard venue thar 1s now atcracting conferences
and guests from around the world Celsys the
commercial prnong company, has purchased and
installed a range of further prinung presses and
fimshing equipment to make 1t into one of the
teading print companies i Zimbabwe FMNA
has seen the 1nvestment Ito 1ts  mstant
messaging systerns credte a business thar now has
access to a mobile telecomn subscriber base of over
45 milhion and during the vear, 1t has seen 1ts
first real revenues being generated from Ceonet in
Zimbabwe

LonZim has historically striven to be che best in
each marker where 1t operates As the economy
recovers each LonZim business 15 well posiiioned
o benefit and, importantly, has the necessary
skills, resources and capabihities to grow

Group turnover for the year was £5 926.000
compared to the previous year of £4 900 000,
generatng a loss before tax of £6 611.000, which
compared to the previous years loss before tas of
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£5 716,000 Gross profit for the year has
increased by 55% (£1 200,000) when compared
to the previous year

With the conanued economic development in
Zimbabwe che high historic coses of keeping
businesses open and restructuring for recovery are
coming to an end and normal trading margins are
rerurning o the marker

An operarional review of the companies within
the LonZim portfolio follows

Levpard Rock Hotel (Put) Limisted
(" Leopard Rock™) ( 100% holding)

This  1conic
repuracion

property, with a  worldwide
has  completed 118
refurbishment program and has brought in high
cahbre sraff to position the hotel as one of
The General
Manager won the best Privace Secror Tourism
Manager ot the Year Award 1in Zimbabwe and the

rescaurant has an enviable repurarion The horel 15

iricial

Zimbabwe's leading propernies

seeing strong growth 1n occupancy driven by a
growinyg undersranding rhar 1t 1s back ar the rop
of Zimbabwe's market combined with the
need tor conferences  and
accommodation as the economy recovers The

mncreasing

golf course remains a strong attraction for che
property and the next phase of development will
include upgrading 1t to s ongmal championship
standard and, potenually, the addition of a spa to
ensure the hotel offers a total destnation package
Plans 1o further develop the 400 hectare game
park are also under review

The hotel indusery 15 expected o be one of the
sectors of the economy that will recover the fastest
and the market for the Leopard Rock Hotel 1

demonstrably beginmng to recover At year end
the Leopard Rock Hotel was independently
valued act USS18 30 milhion {(£11 32 nmulhon)
(2010 US$15 25 milhon (£9 83 milhon))

Gardoserve (Pvt} Linnted
(tradmg o “Mallchen:™) (100% holding)

Mullchem. which formerly traded as Millpal. s an
industrial c(hemical distributor and as such s
success 15 directly linked with che size and growth
of the economy During che year the company has
seen a strong recovery 1n the sector, and has
revised and rebuile 1ts supplier network to meet
the forecast growing demand for chemicals in the
industrial and mining secrors Millchem 15 the
leading supplier of industrial solvents and meral
treatment products in Zimbabwe During che
year 1t has established new routes of supply to
ensure that it provides an exceptional service to
its customers and s lughly competinive as the
marker recovers Specifically, after enrry 1nro the
mining idusrry, encouraging growth has been
noted 1 the supply of chemicals ro the miming
industry as levels of output begin to recover

Celvys Linnited
("Celsys™) (GO% holding)

Celsys, which 1s hsted on the Zimbabwe Stock
Exchange. has established 1self as one of the
leading commercial printing
companties  n undertook a
significant refurbishment of 1ts premuses during
the vyear

and security

Zimbabwe and
The management team has been
srrengrhened and the addition of new equipment.
finishing and processing capabilinies puts Celsys
at the forefronr of 1ty marker Revenues and
margins started at a very low base bur Celsys has

established a strong position 1n the printing
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market and as a result of 1ts professional <ervice
levels, 15 seeing very strong growth in the market
as 1t recovers The average wize of each order
increasing and monchly revenues are developing
well

Celsys also leases ATMs and POS machimes to
banks 1n Zimbabwe This business 1s driven by a
minimum guaranteed lease paymenr combined
wirh a fee per rransacrion The use of ATMs across
rhe councry has increased significanrly during rhe
year

ForgetMeNot Africa (B V1) Linited
("FMNA") (51 % holding)

FMNA provides ‘message opuumiser’ applications
for mobile phones turming basic GSM phones
into ‘smart phones , providing access to e-matl,
Facebook and instant messaging scrvices via even
the most basic cellphone handser, which 15 an
important facility for Africa During che year,
LonZim purchased rhe exclusive nighrs for rhe
FMNA producr platform in Africa for USSI
milhon (£0 61 tmillion)

FMNAs major success has been with Econer
Zimbabwe wlhich 1s now producing monthly
revenues Other networks where FMNA has been
deployed 1nclude Safaricom Kenya Econer
Lesotho, Globacom Nigeria, Wand Congo and
Yu and Essar in Kenya

FMNA now has access to over 435 mullion
cellphone subscribers 1n 6 countries and plans to
expand throughout Africa as che produce range 15
developed and s services are synchronised
interact with mdividual nerworks

Payner Lomited
(“Paynet”) (1009 bolding)

Payner provides electronic data incerchange
(“"CDI ") SWITCH services for all 25 banks n
Zimbabwe The number of cransactions processed
in rhe counrry can be direcrly correlared wirh rhe
groweh and size of the economy Payner has seen
rhe number of rransactions handled in the year
more than double a clear sign of the economic
recovery thar 1s underway Paynet also provides
transacnion services for over 1,000 of Zimbabwe s
largest corporate companies

Auropay (Pve) Limited (" Autopay ™), a subsidiary
of Payner, 1s the marker leading salary bureau and
payroll sofrware provider Like Payner. Autopay
has <een strong growch, with the number of
payshps processed growing rapidly  Autopay has
grown 1ts customer base to over 160 payrolls
Zimbabwe

Tradaner (Pve) Limited (“Tradanec’), also a
subsidhiary of Paynet. provides processing of
payroll backed loans to comorate employees The
business has seen strong growth dunng the year
as workers become more confident in the
employment environment and as a result are
seeking credic facihioies Defaules on chis type of
loan remain very low and the business 1s seeng
the average size and number of loans increase The
loan book arranged chrough a local financial
msticution i Zimbabwe and admumstrated by
Tradanet, has grown to US$50 million (£30 58
million) as che market has recovered
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Indigenization

Following an extensive review and in-depth
discussions the Company submirred a proposed
indigenization plan to the Government, wluch
has been welcomed and approved The process 1s
subject  to  vanious  clanificanions  and
recommendations The plan outlines an agreed
process whereby via Zimbabwean finanaal
mscicunons, state nsttutons and the wider
population, it 15 possible for 5192 of the equity n
the Company to be acquired by Zimbabweans

over a four year period

Disposal

On 4 October 2011 LonZim announced that e
had completed an agreement wich Lonrho Horels
(Holdings) Limited to dispose of 1ty 8075 holding
in Aldeamento Tunstico de Macutt SARL for
USS5 1| mullton (£3 | nullion). a company wich a
long lease on a prospective coastal development
site 1n Beira, Mozambique, as part of LonZim’s
growing focus on the economic opportunities
within Zimbabwe

Change 1n reporting currency

The Directors have made the decision for the
Company to report in US Dollars going forward
in order to give a clearer understanding of the
Company's performance, reflecting the profile of
the Group’s revenue and resules, which are
prmarly in US Dollars The change 15 effective
from | Seprember 2011 and che intenim resules
tor the six months ending 29 February 2012 will
therefore be reported in US Dollars

Funding

Post year end the Company rarsed £917,341 from
an existing shareholder via a placing of 3,988 439
shares at a price of 23 pence per share to provide
working capital for che Group's existing
businesses and to provide the Company with the
abiliry ro continue implemencing 1ts Investment
strategy

Geoffrey Whate

Direcror & Chief Executive Officer
11 November 2011
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Corporate Responsibility

LonZim has concmnued with 1t programme of
corporate responsibility acuvities, which 1t
recogmises 1 an itmporant component of building
successful businesses

Protecting the enviromment and supporting local
conimunities

The Group sees the imporcance of protecting the
cnvIronmenrt In \\’thh 10s C()m]"ﬂﬂlﬁs Opt‘mte ﬂﬂ(]
seeks to contribure to local communities

* The Leopard Rock Hotel, in conjunction with
Wildhife Environmental Protection Unit
(WEPU). rche business commumrty and
Narional Parks, has started an anti-poaching
umit whereby a Leopard Rock employee 15 a
part of the WEPU unit on a voluntary bases
and spends one day a week on WEPU durnies
The Narnonal Parks tramming facility has seen
more than 300 snares beimng cleared from the
area and several arrests for poaching have been
effected by WEPU scours thus preserving a
viral component of Zimbabwe's rourism
mdusrry

® Leopard Rock also orgamised traming wich the
Naconal Parks for all s employees and the
netghbouring community to learn about
protected species of flowers animals and trees
and hunting laws to prorect the tlora and fauna
m che area

¢ Paynet has developed a relavonshup with a
local children’s home with a view rto
wdentfymg mnanves and projects which ir
will sponsor on an ongoing basis For the

coming year, Paynet has paid che school fees
for four disabled and disadvanraged cluldren
and 15 financing the repair of some of the
home’s facilicies which Paynet employees will
be involved with

¢ Celsys has supported vanous local mnsutuctons
by providing free printing services

Investing 1n our workforce and their well-being

LonZim 1s commirred to artcracting and retaining
quality human resources to  support  the
development of Group companies and encourages
protessional development of all Group employees

e Paynec has conunued to endorse 1ts Skall soft
Learming  Imuanve  Payner  Zimbabwe
("LIPZ ") programme which offers network and
systems admimiseracion as well as customer
support services trmming  Of the nine students
tramed lasce year, all found employment afcer
completing the programme three of whom are
now working ar Payner

¢ Payner 1s looking ro butld on the success of the
LIPZ. programme and 1s currently shorrlisting
potential candidares from local umiversities
wirth the aim of taking on four Informacion
Technology Induserial undergraduates on
placement for the forthcoming year for an
erght monch attachmenr period

* Millchem acutively encourages employees’
stuchies and assists wich the payment of course
tees for professional development Members of
management are also sent on seminars and
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short courses o enhance cheir leadership and
performance skalls

Celsys provide loans to employees for approved
work relared courses and degrees The loans are
then refunded upon successful completion of
the course Employee retention 1s encouraged
by the existence of long service award bonuses
for every five consecutive years worked ar the
C()m])any

Leopard Rock Horel provides ongoimng horel
management tramning to university students
The hotel has also collaboraved wich a local
Polytechnical College to crain restaurant
service staff The most successful are raken on
as entry-level employees

The Group conducts all of 1ts acuvities mn a
manner which achieves the highest pracucable
standards of health and safecy to  ensure
employees wellbeing

e Millchem operates to serict hazardous chemical
safety standards and 15 also guided by the
National Social Securnity Authoriey standards
ro prorect the welfare of 1ts employees These
ensure thar employees are sent for medical
rests every one to rwo years to make sure chat
they are not being adversely affected by
constant contact with hazardous chemicals
Satetry clothing 1s also purchased for employees
every year

e [irst aid training 15 encouraged across the
Group
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David Lenigas, 50. Executrve Charrman

David Lemgas holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science in Mining Engineering He has excensive
experience operating 1m the public company
environment and 1s the Execurive Chairman of
Lonrho Plc and s also Chairman of Lem Gas &
Qul Plc Solo Oil Plc, and Lonrho Mining Limited
and 1s a Direcror of Varukoula Gold Mines Plc
and Reef Resources Led

Genffrey Whrte, 50, Divector and Chief Executive
Off1cer

Geoffrey White 15 a Director and che Chief
Executive Officer of Lonrho Plc and holds a BSc
in Lconomics and Management Saence Durning
his career he has held senior management roles
Thomas Tilling Ple, BTR Plc, Dee
Corporation Ple, Asda Plc and latterly worked for
five years for a privare invesrment fund based in
London He has been responsible for rhe
plannming.  financing,  developmenr  and
management of a range of projects 1n the lesure,
These
projects include estabhishing joint ventures wirh
international corporations such as Hilton Hortels
International., Ford Motors (PAG), Praton
International GmbH and FES Refiners (Pry)} Lid

with

imnduserial and natural resource sectors

Dyavid Avmstrong, 46. Fiance Divector

David Armstrong (FCA) 15 also the Finance
Direcror of Lonrho Ple David brings with him
extensive experience of operating across Africa
having Dbeen, until  Ocrober 2004  rthe
Commercial Director of Diageo Africa wirh
combmed funcoonal responsibilicy for hnance.
informartion  systems, strategy and
development He contributed to the successtul
deployment of 1ageos pan-African growth
strategy, encompassing over 30 countrnes More
recently, he has been rhe COQO of McArchur Glen
in the UK and Burope

bustness

Enana Priestley, 38, Executive Divector

Emma Priestley worked 1n investment banking
for five vears following a career as a mining
engineer She has a background 1in mining and
financial services having worked with consultants
IMC Mackay & Schnellman, investment bank
CSFB, advivors VSA Resources and Ambran
Partners, where she worked as a corporare broker
and advisor Emma 1s a graduate of Camborne
School of Mines, a Chartered Mining Engineer
and Chartered Mineral Surveyor She s also an
Executive Director of Lonrho Ple

Pawul Turner. 64, Non-Executrve Divector

Paul Turner 15 a Charrered Accountant and past
President  of the Institute of  Chartered
Accountants of Zimbabwe He 15 a highly
respected and knowledgeable member of the
7Zimbabwean business commumry He was a
partner ar Ernst & Young i Harare, Zimbabwe
tor over thirty years and brings an unparalleled
level of experience 1 che structure and operation
of businesses in Zimbabwe

Paul Heber, 48, Non-Execantive Director

Paul Heber 1s an 1nvestment manager and
stockbroker with more than 20 years experience
m global stock markers, following 3 years in che
oil indusery Formerly with SGHambros, Nat
West and W1 Carr he 185 now with bespoke
bourigue Savoy Investment Management (with in
excess of £1 2 billion of privare and institurional
funds under management). regulared by borh the
EFSA in London and the TSB 1n Johannesburg He
has a broad pan-African chentele alongside his
domestic UK Tumpean and Bermudan business

Paul 15 also a Non-Executive Director of Shanta

Gold Pl¢
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Jean Ell1s. 42, Non-Executive Director

Jean Ellis 15 a Chartered Accountant and
Chartered Tax Advisor and holds an Insolvency
Practitioner’s license She 1s the semior partner 1n
the regional firm of Chartered Accounrtants,
Duncan Sheard Glass. having been a parrner rhere
since 2002 Prior ro this she was Group Financial
Conrroller and Tax Manager of Lonrho Plc and
holds a number of directorships for 1ts subsidiary
companies Jean has a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Pure Mathemartics from Leverpool University Jean
was formerly Tinance Director of Lonrho Plc and
15 now a Non-Executive Director of that company

She was also formerly Finance Director of LonZim
Plc

Coltn Orr-Ewmg*, 69, Non-Executrve Divector

Colin Orr-Ewing 1 a graduate of Oxford
Unuversity 1n Geography and has been involved n
the natural resources secror for 35 years He began
hus career as an investment manager for the Shell
Pencion Fund 1n London afrer complering his
a Cerrified Accountanr  His
experience covers borh rhe o1l and mining
industries and he has been a director of UK and
Canadian o1l compantes and Irish and Canadian
mining companies Mr Orr-Ewing also advises a
management

educarion as

fund company on 1ts  nacural
resources porcfolios and has extensive experience
in incernacional financial affairs He was deeply
involved n the ol indusery from 1971 through to
1987 with numerous companies 1 the North Sea,

Libya, Nigeria and Algeria

*  Cohin Qrr-Ewing resigned as o Director on 31 Ocrober
2011
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement in Respect of the

Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing che
Directors Repore and che financial statements 1n
accordance with applicable law and regulations
In addition, the Directors have elecred to prepare
the Group and Parent Company financial
statements n - accordance with Internactional
Financial Reporning Srandards

The Group and Parenr Company financial
statements are required ro give a rrue and farr
view of the srate of atfairs of rhe Group and Parent
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period

In prepanng these financal statements, the
Darectors are required to

* selecr suirable accounang pohcies and then
apply them consistently,

¢ make judgements and estimates thar are
reasonable and prudent,

* state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with International Finanaial
Reportung Standards, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basts unless 1t 1S nappropriate to
presume thar the Group and Parent Company
will conainue 10 business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records thac are suffictent to show and
explain the Parent Company’'s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy ar any time 1rs
financial  posinnon They  have  general
responstbility for raking such sreps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and derect fraud and

other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mamnenance
and ntegrity of the corporate and financal
informacion included on the Company's website
Legislation governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ
from one junsdiction to another
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Directors’ Report

For the year ended 31 Auguse 2011

The Directors of LonZim Plc submurt their report, together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 Auguse 2011

Principal activities

During the year, the Group was an investment company with a portfolio of investments in Zimbabwe
and the Beira Corridor in Mozambigue Post year end, on 4 October 2011, LonZim announced that it
had completed an agreement to dispose of 1ts 80%% holding 1n Aldeamento Tunistico de Macun SARL,
a company with a long lease on a prospective coastal development site in Beira Mozambique, as part
of LonZim's growing focus on the economic opportumties wichin Zimbabwe

Invesement Scrategy

The Company's investment objectve 1s to provide Shareholders wich long term capiral appreciation
through the 1nvestmenc of 1ts capital primarily in Zimbabwe and, 1t appropriate, the region of
Mozambique known as the Beira Corridor, which links Zimbabwe to the coast While the Company
does not have a particular sectoral focus. utlising the mvestment shills of the Direcrors and their
advisors  the Company seeks to idenafy individual companies 1n sectors best positioned o benefic
should there be radical improvements in Zimbabwe's economy The Company may make investments
in the tourtsm, accommaodaton infrastruceure  cranspore, commeraal and residential properey,
rechnology, communicarions, manufacturing, rerail, services lesure, agncultural and natural resources
sectors The Company may also make investments 1 businesses outside Zimbabwe that have a
significant exposure to assets, businesses or operations within Zimbabwe The Company will also look
inco expanding businesses and brands currently owned by Lonrho Plc (“Lontho™) or in wlnch Lonrho,
has an interest in Zimbabwe The Company will only be able to achieve its investment objective in the
event the Zimbabwean economy radically improves

Whilse there will not be any limit on the number or size of investments the Company can make in any
sector the Directors seek o diversify the Company s investments across various sectors m order to
nutigate risk and to avord concentraning the portfolio 1in any single sector

The Company's interest i a proposed 1NVeSTMENt or aCquISItIon May range from a minority position
to full ownership The Company intends. 1n any event to actively manage the operations of the
companies it has mvested in The Company has an established management team in Zimbabwe to
provide local day to day management of compames and businesses acquired Wherever possible the
Company will seek to achieve Board control or financal concrol of s portfolio compames
Indigenizarion legislarion wichin Zimbabwe may however, prevenr the Company from acquiring
majority shareholder conrrol 1n Zimbabwean businesses
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The Directors believe that through cheir individual and collective experience of nvesting and
managing acqusitions and disposals 1n Africa, they have the necessary skills to manage the Company
and, with the assistance of Lonrho under the management services agreement derailed in che
Company s AIM admission document, to source deal flow Prior to any mvestment decisions being
raken by the Board of the Company. a thorough due diligence process 15 undertaken by the Company's
apponted specialist financial and legal advisors

The Companys investment strategy 18 dependent upon future radical improvement 1n the
Zimbabwean economy, and 1t 15 theretore possible that a significant period of time may elapse before
an nvesrment by the Company will preduce any returns However, there 1s no guarantee thar the
economy 1n Zimbabwe will improve Accordingly rhe Company may nor be able to make any profirs
and may 1ncur tosses

The Direcrors intend to seek the consent of the Shareholders for the investment policy on an annual
basis The Company. Directors and Lonrho will comply as a matter of policy with the US Office of
Foretgn Assers Control and the European Union Counait Regulanon (EC) No 314/2004 regulations

Results

The Group made a consolidated loss after non-controlling interests of £3,988 0600 (2010 loss
£4,375,000) dunng the year and clus has been cransferred to reserves This 1s after charging
amortisarion of inrangible assers of £1.750,000 (2010 £1.729,000) {see note 11)

Share capital

On 29 November 2010. the Company announced that 1t had rased £4 987,904 by way of a placing of
17,81 3,9-i4 new ordinary shares at 28p per share, resulting 1n the 1ssued share capical of che Company
bemng increased to 54 145,469 orcdinary shares

Post year end, on 16 S8eptember 201 1, the Company announced thac 1t had raised £917,341 by way of
a placing of 3,988.439 new ordinary shares at 23p per share, resulting 1n the 1ssued share capital of the
Company bemng increased to 38,133 908 ordinany shares

Business review and development

The Cluef Executive's review of operations concains information on developments during the yvear and
key porenual future developments

The requirements of che enhanced business review 1n relation to strategy and progress thereon are
contamed 1 the Chief Executive’s review of operations The prinupal risks and uncerrainnies relate to
the revenue generation i the Groups busmnesses wlhich being located in Africa, are subject to
respective government policies, polittcal stability general economic condinions in the relevant councry
and exposure to foreign currency movements
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The Group monutors cash flow as 1ts pnimary key performance indicaror Given current global financial
conditions, the Direcrors are carefully monitoring cash resources within the Group and have mstigated
a number of imitianives to ensure funding will be available for meeting obligations as they fall due and
planned projeces If such funding cannot be secured the projeces will be delayed or cancelled to ensure
that the Group can manage 1ts cash resources for the foreseeable future and hence the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis The Group also uses a number of other key
performance indicators which are measured at different riers 1n che operation At the top level, the
Group tracks rurnover gross margin contriburion to overheads, cash generarson and performance
aganst budger

The Direcrors wish to mitigare risk by proper evaluarion of every investrent chat 1s made and have
therefore developed a nisk analysis reporung procedure, which lhinks into the Company’s Corporate
Governance procedures

Further informarion regarding the Group s policies and exposure to financial risk can be found 1 noce
25 ro the financial starements

Post balance sheet events

Details of significant events since the reporing date are contained mn note 32 to the financial
statements

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2010 £INil)

Corporate governance
Complrane with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Direcrors recognise the value of the UK Corporate Governance Code (formerly the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance) and, wlulst under AIM rules full compliance 1s not required, the
Directors have considered che recommendations and applicability in respect of the Company nsofar as
is practicable and appropriate for a public company of 1ts size

Buard of Directors

During the year the Board of Directors comprised of four Executive Direcrors, one of whom s the
Charrman, and four Non-Executive Directors Mr Colin Ore-Ewing subsequently resigned as a Director
on 31 October 2011 and the Board has commenced a review of suitable Non-Executive Directors to
complement che skills of the existing team The Directors are of the opimon thar che Board comprises
a sutrable balance ro enable the recommendarions of the Code to be implemented to an appropniare
level The Board, rthrough the Charrman and Chuef Execurive Officer 1n particular, mantains regular
contact with 1ts advisors, public relations consultants and nstcucional investors 1 order to ensure that
the Board develops an understanding of che views of the major sharcholders of the Company
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The Board meets quarterly and 15 responsible for formulatng, reviewing and approving the Company's
strategy, financial actuivinies and operating performance Day to day management is devolved to the
esecutive management who are charged with consulting che Board on all sigmificant finanaal and
operanional marters Consequently, decisions are made promptly following consultation amongst che
Directors and managers concerned, where necessary and appropriate

All necessary information 1s supplied co the Directors on a timely bass to enable them to discharge
their duties effectively and all Directors have access to independent professional advice at the
Company s expense, as and when required

The Chairman 1s available ro meer with nsurutional shareholders ro discuss any 1ssues and concerns
regarding the Group’s governance The Non-Execurive Direcrors can also arrend meerings wirh major
shareholders, 1if requested

The partiapation of both private and nsucutonal 1nvestors at the Annual General Meeting 1s
welcomed by the Board

Internal contrals

The Directors acknowledge cherr responsibilicy for the Company's and the Group s systems of internal
control. which are designed ro safeguard the assets of the Group and ensure the rehiabilicy of financial
information for both nternal use and excernal publication Overall control 15 ensured by a regular
detailed reporting system covering the state of the Group s finanaal atfairs The Board has developed
procedures for idennfying, evaluaring and managing rhe sigmificanr risks thar tace the Group, which
will be implemented in rhe coming monrhs

Any system of internal conrrol can provide only reasonable. and nor absolure. assurance rhar mareral
financial irregularinies will be detecred or thar the nisk of fallure to aclieve business objecrives 1s
eliminated

Connittees

The Board has devolved duties to the following commirtcees

Azrder Comiittee

The role of the Audit Committee 15 to oversee the nature and scope of the annual audit, management’s
reporang on iternal accounning standards and practices. financial information and accounting syscems
and procedures and the Company’s financial reporung statements The Audic Committee’s primary
objecaves include assisting che Directors in meeting cherr responsibilicies 1 respect of the Company’s
continuous financial disclosure obligations and overseeing che work of che Company’s external auditors
The Audir Committee compnises Paul Turner (Charrman). Paul Heber and Jean Lllss
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Remunevation Comnittee

The Remuneration Commirtee makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneratuon policy that
applies to Executive Directors and senior employees During che year the members of the
Remuneration Commircee were Paul Heber (Chairman), Paul Tumer and Colin Orr-Ewing
Subsequent to Colin Orr-Ewing s resignation on 31 Qctober 2011, the Remunerauon Commitree
comprises Paul Heber (Chairman) and Paul Turner

Nomination Comnirttee

The Nomation Committee 1s responsible for idenufying candidates co fill vacancies on che Board, as
and when they arise and nommate them for approval by the Board The Nominatton Committee
comprises Paul Heber (Chairman), Paul Tumer and Geoffrey White

Substantial shareholdings

The Directors have been advised of the following shareholdings at 10 November 2011 1n 3 per cenc
or more of the Company’s 1ssued share capital

Percentage

No  of the ssuced

of shares caprtal

Lonrho Ple 13,324,010 22929
Consilum Fmerging Market Absolute Return Muster Fund Ltd 8179464 14 07%
HSBC Chiene Holdings Nomimee (UK) Limiced 5,815,050 10 00%
MKM Longboat Muloi-Seracegy Maseer Fund 4,860 000 8 36%
I'rank Russell Compiny / Russell Investments Ermited 4 385,284 7 5a%%

Directors

The following Direcrors have held office during che year Mr 1> A Lemigas (appointed 7 November
2007), Mr G T White (appointed 7 November 2007), Ms E K Priestley (appointed 7 November 2007),
Mrs J M Elhs (appoinced Finance Director 7 November 2007 and became a Non-Execurtive Direcror
6 October 2009 upon appomntment of Mr D J Armstrong). Mr P 1D Heber (appointed 7 November
2007), Mr P Turner (appownted 1 July 2008), Mr C Orr-Ewing (appointed 14 Seprember 2009),
Mr D J Armscrong (appointed 6 October 2009)

Mr C Orr-Ewing resigned as Director on 31 October 2011

Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 8 and 9
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Direc tors ’ Repo Y'C contenned

Directors’ share interests

The Directors’ interests i the shares of the Company ar the beginning and end of the year were as
follows

Ar3lro81i At 0109 10

Dirccrors No of sharcs  No of shares
D A Lamigas 250,000 250,000
G T Whate 150 000 150 0U0
E K Priesdey Nil Nil
J M Ellis Nil Nl
P D Hleber 176,496 50,000
P lurner Nil Nil
C Orr-Lwing 25 000 25 000

Share options held by the Direcrors are detailed i note 19 of che financial statements

All of the above interests are recorded 1n the Company's Register of Directors’ Share and Debencure
Interests No Direcror has a beneficial ineerest in the shares or debentures of any of che Company’s
subsidiary undertakings

There have been no other changes 1n Directors’ share interests since 31 August 2011

Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy

The Company has 10 place an Ant-Corrupuion and Bribery Policy which has been adopted by che
Company across all divisions of the Group The Board has overall responsibility for ensurning
compliance by Directors. employees and other persons associated wich the Group wich apphicable tegal
and ethical obligations The Company « Tinance Direcror has primary and day-ro-day responsibility for
implementation of the policy Managemenc ac all levels of the Group are tesponsable tor ensunng those
reporung to them are made aware of, and understand, che policy The policy gives guidance on risk
identification and the procedures to follow where a risk 15 identified, together wich clear guidelines on
aifts. entertainment and donacions

Insurance

The Company has Directors’ and Officers” liabilicy insurance cover in place tor Group Directors

Share price performance

Berween | September 2010 and 31 August 2011 the share price varied becween a hugh of 33p and a
tow of 19 Ip Ac 31 Augost 2011 the mid-market price of the shares at dose of business was 21 5p
At 10 November 2011 the mid-market price of the shares was 21 5p
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Political and charitable donations

No polinical or chantable donations have been made by the Group during the year, save for those
disclosed on pages 6 and 7 The Group 15 involved with a number of charitable projects chrough s
subsidiaries, details of which are also set out on pages 6 and 7

Payment to suppliers

The Group does not follow any code or standard with regard to the payment of s suppliers The
Groups policy 1s to agree rerms and conditions wich suppliers in advance, payment 1s then made 1n
accordance with the agreemenr provided the supplier has met the terms and conditions Amounts due
to supphiers ar the reporting dare are contained 1n note 23

Change 1n reporting currency

The Directors have made che decision for the Company to report in US Dollars going forward 1n order
to give a clearer understanding of the Company s performance. reflecting the profile of the Groups
revenue and resulrs, which are primanly in US Dollars The change 15 effective tor the results for the
six months ending 29 Bebrouary 2012

Auditors

A resolurion ro re-appoinr KPMG Audit LLC and ro aurhorise rhe Direcrors to fix their remunerarion
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

The Direcrors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that so far as
they are each aware there 15 no relevant audie informanon of which the Company’s Auditors are
unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps char he/she ought to have taken as a Director to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audic informaton and to establish chat the Company’s Auditors
are aware of that information

Annual General Meeting

The notice of meeting together with a form of proxy, will be sent ouc separately ac a later dace

On behalf of the Board
A Denr
Company Secrerary

11 November 2011
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Report of the Independent Auditors, KPMG Audit LLC,
to the members of LonZim Plc

We have audited the Group and Parenc Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of
LonZim Plc for che year ended 31 Auguse 2011 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement,
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income the Consolidated Statement of Changes n
Equity. the Consolhidated and Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidared and
Company Statements of Cash Flows and the related notes The financial reporting framework chat has
been applied i therr preparanion 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRSs)

Thus report 1s made solely ro rhe Company’s members, as a body Qur audir work has been underraken
so thar we mighr srare 10 rthe Company « members rhose marrers we are required ro srate ro rhem in an
audiror’s reporr and for no orher purpose To the fullest exrent permurred by law, we do not accepr or
assume responsibilicy to anyone other than che Company and the Company’s members as a body, for
our audic work. for chis report or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully 1n the Directors’ Responsibilinies Statement set out on page 10, the Directors
are responsible for the preparacion of financial statements that give a true and ftair view Our
responsibilicy 15 to audit, and express an opimeon on, the finanaal statements i accordance with
apphicable law and International Standards on Audining (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply wirh the Auditing Pracrices Board's {APB’s) Echical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whecher caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounung
policies are appropriate to the Groups circumstances and have been consistendy applied and
adequartely disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and
the overall presentanion of the financial statements

Opinion on the financial statements

In our opimon che financal statements

e uive a true and fair view of the state of the Group and Parenc Company s aftairs as at 31 August
2011 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended, and

® have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs

KPMG Audit LLC
Chuartered Acconntanty
Heritage Courr

41 Achol Street
Douglas

Isle of Man

IMOY 1HN

11 November 2011
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 Auguse 2011

2(H 1 2010

Total Total

Norto L0000 £ 000

Revenue 4 5,926 4,900
Cost of sales 5 (2,56 (2.734)
GROSS PROTTT 3,366 2,166
Operating costs 5 (9.602} (8,311)
RESULLS FROM OPERATING ACIUIVITIES BEFORE NE1 FINANCE
(COS1S/INCOMEL (6,236) (6,145)
Mnance mcome 7 183 439
lsnance costs 7 {S58) (L
NET FINANCE (COSTSYINCOMF (375 429
LOSS BEFORE 1AX (6.6L1) (5,716}
[ncome rax 3 2 582
LOSS FOR THE YFAR {6,569) (5,130
ATTRIBUTABLF TO
QOwners of the Company 17 (5,988) (4.37%)
Non-controlling mecrese 17 (581 {(759)
LOSS FOR IIIL YEAR (6,569} (5,134)
Bast loss per share (pence) v {12 4p) (12 4p)
Dadured loss per share (pence} 9 (124 (12 4p)

he notes on pages 24 o 57 are an integral part of these consolidared financial statemencs
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 Auguse 2011

2041 2010
Note L0000 LO00
LOSS FOR 1THE YEAR 17 (6,569) {5,134)
O1THER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Foreign currency translanion diffcrences for oveness operations 17 (605) (8Y)
Revaluacion of property, plane and equipment 17 1,298 2,346
TOTAL COMPRFHENSIVF LOSS FOR THF YEAR (5.876) (2,677)
ATIRIBULIABLE 10O
Owners of the Company (5,343) {2,022
Non-controlling 1nreresr (533) (653)
1OTAL COMPREFIENSIVE LOSS FOR [FIE YEAR {5.876) (2,677)

The notcs on pages 24 to 57 are an incegral pare of these consohidated financl Statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 August 2011
Non- Non-
Owners of controlling 2011 Owners of conrrolling 2010
the Company mneerest Total the Company INTErest Total
LO0) L£00(0) LON0 LO00 L0000 LOO0
Al 1 SEPIEMBFR 31,670 240 31910 32,579 895 33,474
Total comprehensive loss for the yaar  (5.343) (533) (5,876) (2,022) (655) (2,677)
TRANSACLION WITH OWNERS
OF 1 HE COMPANY
Share 1ssue net of 1ssue coses 4,844 - 4,844 1,113 - 1113
Al 31 AUGUSI 31,171 (293) 30,878 31,670 240 31,910

I he notes on piges 24 to 57 are an integral pare of these consolidaeed financnal statcments
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Consolidated and Company statement of
financial position
As ar 31 August 2011
Group Company Group Company
2011 2011 2010 2010

Note LOM) SO0} LO00 L0000
ASSETS
Properry, plant and equipment 10 19.597 83 18,548 24
Gaoodwill 11 4,325 - 4.325 -
Orher meangible assers 11 4,253 2,320 5,334 3,645
Invescment in subsidiaries 12 - 2.736 - 2,736
Deferred tan assers 21 798 - 645 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENI ASSEES 28,973 5,139 29052 6,405
Assces held for salc 10 2,111 - 3,557 -
Orthar investments 13 67 - 101 -
Inventories 14 498 - 339 -
Trade and other receivables 15 2,760 23.6606 2,922 21,761
Cash and cash equivalenes 16 658 365 291 38
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,004 24,031 7.210 21,7949
TOLAL ASSELS 35,067 29,170 36,262 28,204
FQUITY
Issued share capical 1718 5 5 4 4
Shure premium 17,18 38,310 38,310 33 467 33 467
Revaluacion rescrve 17 18 3,918 - 2,750 —
Forcign exchange reserve 17 (943) - 420} -
Shure based paymenr reserve 17,18,19 165 165 165 165
Reramncd losses 17 (10}, 284) (11,155) (1,296) (7.694)
TOTAL FQUITY ATTRIBUTABLF TO
OQOWNERS OF THE COMPANY 17 31,171 27,325 31,670 25,942
NON-CONTROLLING INTFRFSTS 17 (293) - 240 —
LOTAL EQUI'lY 30,878 27,325 3910 25,942
LIABILTTIES
Provisions 20 628 628 628 618
Deferred tax habihoies 21 815 - 933 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILI'TITS 1443 628 1,561 628
Bank overdrafts 16 29 - - -
Currcne tax habihioes 160 35 41 35
Interest bearmg loans 22 917 917 963 963
‘Irade and other payables 25 1,640 265 1.787 636
IO1AL CURRENI1 LIABILILIES 2,746 1,217 2,741 1,634
TOTAL LIABILITIFS 4,184 1,845 4,352 2.262
1O1AL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 35,067 29,170 16,262 28,204

1 hese financiad statements were approved by

werc signed on their behalf by
G White
Director & Chief Execunive Officer

The notes on pages 2+ to 57 are an inccgral pare of these consolidated financiil statements

the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 11 November 2011 1hey
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Consolidated and Company statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 August 2011
Group Companv Group Company
2011 2011 2010 2010
Note LOO0) £000 L0000 L0800
CASIH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACIIVITIES 24 351 (2,139 (3,384) (2.061)
Increase tn iNveneorics 24 {159) - (143) -
Dyecrease/Gimcrease) m cash due
£TOIT LUSLOMErs 24 162 (1.903%) 19 (1A23)
(Decrease)/ increase 1n cash due o supphers 24 (147) (372 621) 38
CASH USED IN OPERAILIONS 24 (3,654) (4.4106) (4.131) (3,446)
Interest paid (147) - (14) -
Interest recenved 183 43 - 25
NFT CASH USFD IN QOPERATING
ACTIVITIES 24 (3.618) (4.373) (4,145) {(3.421)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVES 1 ING
ACTIVITIFS
Proceeds trom disposal of properry,
plant and equupment 677 - - -
Purchase of properey planc and ¢quipment 10 (1,011 (98) (1.703) -
Purchase of mcangibles 11 (6G1) - - -
Proceeds from salc of investmenes 87 - 1,630 -
Acquisition of mvestments 13 (37) - - -
NEI CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACLIVHIIES (945) 98 (75) -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issue of shire capiral 17,18 4,987 4,987 1,113 1113
I'ransicrion costs of 1ssuc of shares 17,18 (143) (143) - -
(Repayment of)proceeds trom loans (46) {46) 963 963
NFT CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIFS 4,798 4,798 2,076 2076
Ner increase/{decrease) i cash and
cash equivatents 233 327 (2,144) (1.3453)
C sl and cash equavatenes ae 1 deprember 291 38 2,431 1,383
Fareign exchange movemencs 103 - 4 -
CASIT AND CASHE EQUIVALEN1S
Al 31 AUGUSI 629 365 291 38

The notes on pages 24 o 57 are an mregral pare of these consolidated finanoal statements
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2011

1  Rcportung enury

LonZim Plc (the “Company™) s « wimpany incorporated in the Tsle of Man  1The consolidated financial statements of che
Group for the year ended 31 August 2011 comprise the Company and 1ts subsidaries (togecher referred to as the “Group”
and indrvidually as * Group entinies™)

The financial statcmenes were authorised for issue by che Dircctors on 11 November 201 1
2 Basms of preparanon
Statement of compliairce

1 he consolidared financial statements have been prepared in accordance wich Incernarional Financial Reporring Srandards
{IFRSs) a8 adopecd by the L U On publishing rhe parent company financwl statements here togecher wath the Group
financial scatements, the Company 15 caking advanrage of the fict whereby under the Isle of Man Compames Acr 2006
there 15 no requiremenr o present a company scatement of comprehensive mcome in consohidared financtal starements

Functional and presentatron currency

The consobidated financial statements are presented m Pounds Sterling which 1s the Company s funcoonal currency All
financial informacion presenced has been rounded ro che nearest thousand

As of 1 Seprember 2011, the Company changed 1ts reporning currency to the US Dollar

Basis of measurernent

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis cxcept for the following
*  arreratt measured ar far value,

¢ financul assers held for rrading are measured ar fair value and

+  land, builldings and plant und equipment are messured ac revalued amounts

New standards and tnterpretations ot yet adapted

At the date of wthorsation of the finincal scatemenes the following scandards which have nor been applied o these
financial scitements, were m ssue but not ver effecrne

¢ Amendments ro FAS | Presenranon of Financiil Sraremenns
+  Amondments to [AS 12 Deferred 1ax Recovery of Underlying Asscrs
s Amendments to TAS 19 Employee Benefits,

= [AS 27 Separace Fmancial Starements

¢ TAS 28 Invesumnents 1n Associares and Joint Venrtures,

* [FRS 7 Disclosures — lTransfers of Financial Assers

+ ITRS 9 Finuncial Instruments

e [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,

* [FRS 11 Joint Arrangemients,

¢ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Intereses 1in Ocher Enooes and

¢ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Directors annicipate char che adoprion of chese srandards m future penods will have no marenal impact on the
fiminaal sratemenes of the Group
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Notes to the financial statements wmmmes

2 DBawis of preparanon (continued)
Use of estimates and judgentents

Lhe preparation of financial statements 1n contormury with IFRSs requires minagement to imike judgements, estunates
and assumprtions thar affect the applicanion of policies and reported amounts of ussets und lubihines, income and expenses
Lhe estimutes and assacrated sssumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors chat are believed to
be reasonable under the arcumstances, the resules of which form the bass of mekmg che judgements about carrying
values of assers and lubihties chac are not readily apparenc trom ocher sources  Actual resules may ditfer from chese
esamates | he eseumates and underlymg assumperons are reviewed on an ongoimng basts Revisions to accounting escimaces
are reeognmised 1 the perod 1n which che estimate 1s revised it che reviswon affects only chac period. or 10 che period of the
revisian andd future periods 1f the revision aftects both currenr und tucure penods

Judgemanes made by management in the application of IFRSs char have significanc ¢fice £ on the financial scatements and
csumates with a significane risk of matcrial adjustment in the nexe year are discussed 10 note 3

Comng concern

L he Group's business activities und finanaial performance are set ou 1n che Chicf Freurve’s Review on pages 2 105 In
addition, note 25 to the financul staccinents inddudes che Groups objectives, pohiaes and processes for managing 1es
capteal, 1es financial risk nanagemene objectives, details of ses fnancal mstruments and hedging accivitics, and 1o
exposure to credie and hiquidity nisk

T he Group has aceess to sufficient financal resources for 1ts needs As a comsequence the Direcrors believe that the Group
s well placed to manage 1ts business risks successtully despite the current cconemie outlook

Atter making enguiries, the [recrors have a rcasonable cxpecranion thar the Company and the Group have adequare
resources to continud 1 operarional exisrence for rhe foresecable furure Accordingly. they connnue 1o adopr the going
concern basis 1 preparing the annual report and financal searemenrs

3 Significant accounung policics

The following accounang poliaes have been apphied consistently by Group
(&) Basis of consohidaton

Subsidraries

The consolidited finanaal starements incorporate che financul statements of che Company and ennities controlled by the
Company (s subsichares) Control s achieved where the Company has che power o govern che financial and operacing
pohies of an 1mestee entity so as to obtain benefits from 1rs acoivines “The finanaal statements of subsiduines are
mcluded 1n che consolidared financial scatements from the dite thar conerol commenced unul che date thae concrol ceases

L he interest of non-contralling shareholders 18 stated at the non-controlling interests” proporawon of che fair values of the
assets and habilines recognised Subsequencly losses applicuble to the non-controlling intereses are allocated againse cheir
mngerests even if doing so causes the non-controlling meerests w have o deticie balance

Ihe resules of enoies acquired or disposed of durmg the year are included m the consohidated ncome starement from che
effecove date of acquisition or up to the effccave date of disposal, as appropriate

Where necessary, the financnl starements of the subsidiaries are djuseed ro conform ro che Groups accounting poelicies

All intra-group tramsactions, balunces, income and expenses ire ehimiared on consolidation
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Notes to the financial statements et

3  Sigmificant accounting policies (conunucd)
(a) Basis of consolidation {(continued)
Buciess combruations

L he acquisition of substdiarnies 15 accounted for using che sequisioon method  §he cost of the acquisioion 1s measured at
the aggregate of the fur values, at che date of exchange of assets given, labiines incurred or assumed. and equity
mstruments ssued by che Group in exchange for control of the acquirce plus any costs directly artnburable to rhe
business combinaoion  1he acquired’s idencifiable assers, hubilines and contmgent Labilities that meet the condittons for
recogmoon under TFRS 3 are recogmised ac cherr futr values at the acquisition dare, except for non-current assets ehat are
classified as held for sale in accordance wich IFRS 5, winch are recognised and measured at farr value less costs to sell

Goodwill ansing on acquisicion 1s recogmsed as an assec and mioally measured ac cose, betng che oacess of the cose of the
busingss combinacion over the Groups incerest 1n the fuir value of the identifiable assces habilines and conungent
Labilicies recogmsed

If after reassessment  the Group’s interest 10 the nee for value of the wquireds denofiable assets, lubilines and
conungent labihities exceeds the cost of the bustness combinanion, the exeess s recognised immnedrately - the income
statement The ineerese of non-concrolhing shurchalders i the acquiree s imicailly measured at the non-controlhing
inrcrests proporvion of the net fair value of the asscrs, habihioes and conongene habilicies recognised

(b) Intangible assets

Goodwrll

Goodwill ansing on comsolidation s recognised as an asset

Following initial recognition, goodwill 13 subjecr to tmpaiement reviews, ar feast annually, and measured ar cosr less
accumulared imparrment fosses The recoverable amounr 15 estimared ar each reporting dare Any imparrmenr loss 1s
recogmised immediarely in the mcome starement and s nor subsequently reversed when rhe carrying amounr of the asser
cxceeds s recoverable umount

Any impairment losses recognised 1n respece of cash generating umts are allocated firet w reduce che carrying amoune of
any goodwill allocared ro cash-generanng unirs (groups of unigs) und then o reduce the carrymg amount of other asses
in the unic (groups of unies) on a pro rata basis

On disposal of a subsidsary che aceriburable amoune of goodwill s mcluded n the determimanion of the gain or toss on
disposal

Other intaugrble assets

Orther intangible assers are measused mitrally ae cost and are amorused on a seratghe-line basis over their escmared uschul
lives ©he carrying amoune is reduced by any provision for impasrment where necessary

On u business combinacion as well as recording separable mtingible assers alecady recogmsed 1n the stacement of financ il
posioion of the acquired ennry ¢t thar fair value idennfiable sntangible assers chac are separable or arse from contracrual
or other legal righes are also induded 1n the acquisition statement of financul position at farr value

Amurtisation of intangible assers 15 charged over rheir useful economc life, on che follow ing basis

Nan-compete agieentine 34 years
Licences 5-6 years

Brand namg 7 years
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NOteS to the ﬁnanCial stacements contnued

3 Sigmficant accounung pohcics (continued)
(¢} Foragn currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented m che currency of the primary cconomic
environment m which 1t operares (1ts funcrional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements the
resulrs and financial posivion of each Group company dre expressed 1 Pounds Sterhing, which 1s the functional currency
of the Company, and che preseatational currency tor che consolidated finanaal staramenes

As of 1 Scpeember 2011 che Company changed 1ts reporting currency o the US Dollar

In preparing the financal statements of the indvidual companies, transacrions denominared 1 foreign currenues are
rranslared 1nro the respecrive funcnonal currency of the Group enrines usmy the ¢xchange rates prevailing ar the dates of
transaceiony  Non-moncrary assers and habilinies are rranslared ar the historie rate Monetary assers and  habiltries
denominired 1 foreygn currencies are rranslared inco the funcoonal currency ar che rates of exchange ruling ar the
reparring dare Non-monetary assers and Inbilicies denominared 1in foreign currenaies rhac are measured ar for value are
recranslared o the funcoonal currency at the exchange rate ar the dice thar che fur value wis derermined  Exchange
diffeeences wrsing on che sectlement of monceary 1ems, and on the retranslation ot moenetary 1tans, are incduded 1n che
income searement for che year, as eicher finance mcome or finance costs depending on wheeher foragn carrency
INOVEINEN LS &£C 10 a4 0t gatn or net loss posicion Fxchange differences arsing on the rerrunslunon of non-monecary ems
earncd ar farr value are induded withm the income scatement for the period oxepe for differcncees arsing on the
recranslation of non-monceary irems 10 respece of which gamns and losses are recognised directdy i equity For such
non-monctary 1tems, any oechange component of chae gan or loss 15 also recognsed dirceely in other comprehensive
income

Tor the purpose of prescnting consohdared financisl scatements  the assets and habilities of the Group's foreign operations
e rranslated ac exchange rates prevailing ar the reporung date Income and expenses are cransiaced at che average
exchange rares for che peniod, unless exchange rates fluctuace so as w have a material impace on the financual statements
during thae period, in which case the cxchange races ac the date of eransactons are wsed Exchange difterences arsing
any, are recognised 1n other comprehensive income and are cransferred to the Groups toreign currency translation reserve
within equiry Such eranslacion 1s recognised as income or as expenses 1n the period m which the eperanion 1s disposed of

(d) Taxauion
I'he tan expense represents the sum of current eax and deferred tax
Current taxation

Current tax 15 based on raxable profic for che period for the Group  Tixable profic daffers from net profic as reporred 1in
the income statement because 1t excludes itenys of income or expense thae are tasable or deductible i other years and it
further excludes ems that are nover taxable or deductible  The Group s Tubshiry tor current cax 1s calculared using cax
rarcs thar have becn enacted or substanoively enacted by the repornng dace

Deferred tarateon

Deferred 11 15 the rax cxpected ro be payable or recoverable on ditferences borwecn the carrying amounts of assers and
Labilirics 1n the financial stacements and the corresponding tax bases wsed 1n the compuranion of raxible profir, and 1
accounted for using rhe balance sheer lubilioy mechod Deferred rix Labilires are generally recognised for all axable
remporary differences and deferred rix assces are recognsed to the exeent thar it s probable rhar raxable profirs will be
gvaitable aganst which deducoble cemporary diffcrences can be unlised Such assers ind Liabihieres are not recognised it
the cemporary ditfcrence arises from goodwill or from the ol recogniton (ocher than ina busimess combinarion) of
other ussets and labthities 10 g transacoion char afteces netther the s profic nor che accountmy profic Doferred tax
habthirics 1r¢ recognised for taxable temporany differcnces ansing on the mvestmenes in subsidiarics and assocraces, cxcept
wherc the Group 1s able o control the reversil of the emporary difierence and it 1s probable thar the temporarny difference
will not reverse 1 the foreseeable furure

Lhe carrying amount of deterred rax assers 15 reviewed ac each repornng date and reduced to che exeent chacios no longer
probable thar sufticient axable profics will be avanlable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered
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3 Sigmficant accounnng policies (conunucd)
() Taxauon {conunued)
Deferred tanation (contimned)

Deferred tax s calculared ac the tux races chat are expected to apply in che period when che habilicy 15 setcled or che asset
15 realised Deferrcd tax s charged or credited m the income statemene, except when e relaces o scems charged or eredited
w0 cquity, 1 which case the deferred tax is abso dealt wath in equity

Deferred tax assets and habilicies are off ser when ctherc 1s a lcgally enforceable righe co sco off current cax assers againse
current tax labiheies and when they redare w mcome taxes levied by the same taxanion authority and che Group ineends
to serrle s current rax assers and habilivies on a nee basis

(e) Other investments
Orher asset investments tre stated ar cost less accumulared impairment losses
(f) Property, plant and equipment

Long leasehold land and buildings, plant and machinery, motor vehicles and fixtures and ficngs are stated i che
stacemene of financul posioon at therr revalued amounts, being rhe R value ac the date of revaluation, less any
subsequent accumulated deprecianion and subsequent accumulared impatrment losses Revaluacions are performed with
sufficient regularity such thae che carryimg amount does noc ditfer marenially from chac whach would be determined using
farr values ac the reporring date

Any revaluacion increase arising on the revaluation of such assces 1s credited w the revaluacion reserve, except to the extent
thar 1t reverses a revaluanon decreasc for the same asser previously recognised as an expense in which case the incredse 18
credited to the income starement o the exrenr of the decrease previously charged A deercase in carry ing amount trising
on the revaluanion of such asser 15 charged as an expense 1 rthe exrent rhar e exceeds the balance of any, held i rhe
revaluation rescrve relanng w a previous revaluarion of thar asser Deprecianion on revalued assers s (harged ro che income
starcment On subsequent <sale or renrement of a revalucd asser, the wrnburable rovluanon surplus remuning s
rransferred direcrly o reraimndd earnings

All ocher assetrs arc stated at deprectared istorical cost less accumulacted deprecnion and accumulated impairment Josses

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost or valuaron of assets, other than land, over their esumated useful lives,
on the following basis

Frechold burldings 2% ob Lont

Leaschold land and buildings Qver the term of che lease
Planc and machincry 10%% of cost

Moror cars 15%%-25%, ol cost
Fixrures and ficrings 15%0-25% ol cost

I'he gamn or loss arsing on the disposal of an asset 15 determined as che differcnce berween the sales procceds und the
carryinyg amount of the asset and s recognsed in che income statement for the yea

Asscis held under finance leases are depreciated over therr cepeceed useful bves en the same basis as owned assers or where
shorter aver the relevane lease erm

No deprecianion 1s provided on frechold land

In respect of arrcraft subsequent costs incurred which lead enhancement w Asture periods such as long erm scheduled
mamtenance and major overhaul of wircraft and engines dre capitalised and amorosed over the lengeh of che period
benefitmg from these enhancements, except when assers are held for sale they are accrued over che nime o che nexe

maintenance overhaul Al other costs relating to maintenance are charged to the income scitemene as incurred

Proporry plane and equipmenc idenufied for disposal are recl issified as assees held for resale
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3  Significant accounung policics {continucd)
() Impaurment of assets excluding goodwill

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrytng amounes of 1ts rangible and intungible assees to determine whether
there 15 any indication chat those assers have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asser v estimated 1 order te determuine the extenc of any imparment loss Where the assec does not
generate cash flows thac are mdependent from other assers the Group estimaces the recoverable amount of the cash-
generatng unie o which che asser belongs Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fur value less coses to sell and value
use [n assessing value 1n use, the estimared future cash flows are discounted to thair presenc vilue using a pretax discoune
rate that reflects current marker assessments of the time value and che risks speaific o the asser for which the estumartes
ot future cash flows have not been adjusted

If che recoverable amwount of an asset (or cash-generaung unic) s esumarced to be Iess than ies carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generacing untr) 15 teduced to 1w recoverable amount Tmpairment loss s recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the rdlevant asser s carned ac a revalued amount 11 which case the reversal of the
imparrment loss is treared as a revaluaton decrease

Where an nnparrmenc loss subsequently reverses, the carryimg amount of the asser (or cash-gencraung unig) 1s increased
to the revised ostimaee of 165 recoverable wnoung, but so thac che increased carrymyg amount does not exceed the warrying
amount thar would have been determined had no imparirmione loss been recognised for che asset (or cash-generating unig)
i prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as mcome mmeduarely unless the relevant asser s carried
ar 4 revalucd amount, in which case che reversal of the imparrment loss 1s treated as o revaluacion increase

{h) Financal mstruments

Non-derivacive financial mstruments COMPrise INVESCMEnts 1IN equity, trade and other recevables, cash and cash
equnnalents, loans and borrowings and trade and other payables

Financial assers and financual labilinies are recognised in the Groups staremenr of fimincual posinon when che Group
becomes a parry to the contracrual provisions of che insrrument

Cash and ecash equtvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposics and other shore ceem highly Liquid investmenes
that are readily convertible w a known amount of cash and are subject o an msignificant risk of changes 10 value Bank
overdrafts thar are repayable on demand and form an cegral part of the Group’s cash management are mcludcd as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows

Trede recervables

Trade recavables are imioally measured at fair value and are subsequenely me sured at amaornised cost using the effccene
meerest rate mechod  Appropriste allowances for escumared recoverable amounts are recognised 10 protic or loss when there
s objecuve evidence the asset 15 impaired

trade payables

1rade peyables are imirtally measured ar fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
inrerest rite merhod

Fmancsal l1abilities

linancial abdrties are assified according to the substance of che concractuib irrangements entered nro

Capatal management

he Board™s policy 15 to mameun 4 sceong capieal base so s o manean mvestor credator and marker confidence and ro
sustain tuture development of the business  Lhe Board of Directors monitors the seturn on capttal, which che Group
defines as ner operating mcome divided by roeal shareholders” equity, excluding non-conrrolling incereses
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3 Sigmificant accounung pohcies (continucd)
(h) Financial instruments (contenued)
Bank borrewnigs

[nterest bearing bank loans and overdrafes are recorded at che proceeds recerved net ot direce ssue costs Finance charges
including premmuims payable on settlement or redempuon and direce sssue costs, are accounted for on an amortised cost
basis to the mcome statement using the effecave mcerest method and .ire added o the carrying amounc of the inscrument
to the exrent thae chey are noc sectled 1in che penod in which chey arise

Equity ristruments

Equiry msrruments issued by the Company arc recorded ar rhe proceeds recaaved, noe of dircer 1ssuc cosrs

(1) Invontorics

Invenronies are stated ac the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct macernials and where applicable
direcr expenditure and arrniburable overheads char have been incurred 10 bringing the mvenconies to their present locarion
and condition Ner realssable value represents the esomared selling price less all ¢stumated costs of complerion and costs
to be incurred in markenng, selling and distribuoon

()) Sharc bascd payments

The Group provides benefies to certain amployees Gneluding senior execunives) of the Group m the form of share based
pay ments, whereby employees render services i exchange for shares or righes over shares (equity -sertled transactions) The
cost of these equity-sertled transactions with employees 15 measured by reference co the fair value of the equity
mscruments «t the Jdate ac which they ar¢ granted ‘The far value 16 determined by using a Bluck-Scholes model The
dilutive effece 1f any, of outstunding oprions s reflected ay addinional share diluvon i the computacion of earmings por
share

The grane date fur value of oprions granted o anployees s recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding
ncrease 10 equity over the period that the emplovecs become uncondittenally encitled w the oprions
(k) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised mitally at farr value less ateributable transacnon costs: Subsequent wo inicial
recognition, neerest-bearing borrowings are staced ac amortised cost with any difference borween cost and redemption
valuc bemg recogused 1n the income seacement over the period of the borrowings on an eftective incerest basis

1 Dividends

Interim dividends are recognised as a habilicy in the porod m o which chey are proposed and declared
Final dividends arc recognised when approved by the shareholders

(m) Provisions

A provision 1s rccognised in che scatemene of financal posicton when the Group hus o present legal or conscructive
obligaction as a resulr of J pase event, and 1t 15 probable thar an oucdtlow of economic benefits will be required o setdle the
obligation If che ¢ffecr 1s matcnal provisions are decermuned by discounting the expected furure cash flows ac a pre-tax
rate thar refleces current murket assessments of che ome vilue of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific o the
Labilicy

{(n) Rcvenuce recogmition

Revenue i derived from the sale of goods and services and 1s measured ar the fur value of considcration recerved or
recetvable, afeer deducting discounts, volume rebares, value-added tax ind orher sales taxes A sale of goods and services
18 recognised when recovery of the consideranion s probable, chere s no continuing management mvolvement with the
goods and services and the amount of revenue can be measured rehably
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3 Sigmificant accountng policies {continucd}
{n) Revenue recognition {(continued)

A sale of goods s recognised when the sigmificane risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer the associated
costs and possible return of goods can be estimuted reliably This is when ntle and insurance rish have passed to the
customer and the goods have been delivercd to o conericrually agreed location

A sale of services s recognised when the service has been rendered

Aarcraft lease sncome 1 recogmised on an accruals basts over the period of the lease

(o) Leases

Leascs are classified accordimg o the substance of the transaction A lease thar tramsfers substannally all the rsks and
rewdards of owncrship to the lessee 1s classified as a finance lease All other leases are classified as operating leases
Frincirce leases

Linance leases are capitabised at their fair vatuc or, of lower, ar che prosene value of the minumum lease payments, cach
determuned at che mceprion of che lease The corresponding Labiliry 15 shown as o finance lease obligation to the lessor
Leastng repayments comprise both o capiral and finance element The finance elemene 1s wricten off to the mcome
starement so as to produce an approximately constant penodic rate of charge on the ourstanding obliganions Such asscrs
are depreciated over the shorter of ther esomated usctul hives and che period of the lease

Operatig leqses

Operaning laase rentals ar¢ charged to the income statcmene on a stragghe hine basis over the period of the lease

(p) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly arenbutable w the acquisinon construction or producnion of a qualifying asset, which are assers
that necessanly tike a substanoal perod of nme o get ready for therr intended usc or sale, are added ro the cost of chose
assers, until such ome as che assers are substannialy ready for therr inwcnded use or sule Invesomenc income earncd on che
temporary investment of speaific borrowings pending their eapendicure on quibifying assers 1 deducted from che
borrowing costs cligible for capitalisation

All ather burrowing coses are recognised m che mcome statement in the period 10 which chey are mmcurred
{q) Loss per sharc

Bastc loss per shaee 1s caleulaced based on the weigheed average number of ordinary shares outstanding durmg the year
Diluted toss por share i bascd upon che weighted average numbser of shares 10 1ssue throughout che year, adjuseed for the
diluttve effece of potential arduny, shares 1he only porential ordinary shares i 1ssue are employec sharc oprions

(r) Non-currcat assets held for sale

Naon-currenr assers that are expected ro be recovered primarily chrough sale or diseribunion rather rhan through
conrmuing use are classified as held for sale Immedutddy bofore reclassificanion as held for sate the assers are remeasured
n accordance wich che Groups accounenng pohicies  Uhercafrer generally the assers are measured ar the lower of ther
carrying amount and fur vilue less coses o sell Impairnienc losses on iniciad classification as held for sale and subsequent
gains and losses on reme wurement are recognised 1t the profit or loss Guains are nor recognsed i excess of any cumularive
impatrment loss

(s) Segment reporting

A scgment 15 a disuinguishable component of che Group that 1s engaged acher 1n providing products or services (business
scgment), or 1 providing products or services within a partcular economic environment (geographical segment), which
1 subject to rishs and rewards chat are difterene trom chose of other s¢gments
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4 Segment reporung

Segmenc mformanion s presented 10 respect of che Group’s business and geographical segments The primary formar,
business segments, 1 based on the Group’s tanagement and internal reportning structure Fhe resules of the busimess
segments dare reviewed regularly by the Group’s CEO to muke decisions abour resources to be allocated o the segment
and o assess 1ts performance and for which discrere financtal mnformanon s avalable

Inter-segment pricing 1s determined on an arm’s lengeh basis

Segment resules char are reported co the CEO include cems directly areriburable to 4 segmenr as well as those thar can
be allocared on a rcasonable basis Unallocared icems comprise mainly income-carning asscts and revenue e rese-bearing
loans, borrowings and expenses, and corporare assers and expenses primarily relaring o Company’s head office

Segment capital expendicure 1s ehe toegl cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets thar are expected w be
used for more chan one period

There 15 no inter-scgment revenue
Business segrments

For munagonwnt purposes the Group s currenely organised mre four main business segments

*  Aviarion |
+  Horels :
*  Support Scrvices ;
¢ Induserial chemical produces
+  Security prinung products
e Telecoms
*  Payrall services
¢ Head Office
Geographrcal segmients
Suppore services and hotels operate i varwous pares of Zimbabwe and the Berra Corndor of Mozambique  Separate
geographical analysis has cherefore nor been presenced
Bisiness segmeitts
Aviation Hotels Supportservices Head office Consolidated

2011 2000 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
LO00 L0000 LOO0 L0000 LD L6000 L0 L000  LOOD LKW

Revenue from

cxternal customers 401 901 1 332 310 4193 3189 - - 5,926 4900
Total revenue 401 901 1,532 810 4,193 3,139 - - 5926 4900
Segment result 299 (112)  (7A3)  (383) (2,212) (2,675) - —- (2,656) (3,372
Unallocated central expenses - - - - - — {3,580 (2,773) (3.580) (2773)
Operaning profit/(loss) 299 (112)  (743)  (583) (2212) {2,673) (53 380) (2,773) (6,236) (6,143)
Ner financing (expense)income  (560) 113 (2958) - 323 - 120 316 (375) 429
Income tax credic/{expense) - - 87 7 (43%) 573 -~ - -2 282
{Loss)Yprofic tor the year (261) ] (914)  (578) (1 934} (2.100) (3 a00) (2437) (6,569) (5134)

All revenues rclire ro sale of goods, services and lese income
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4 Segment reporting (conunued)
Unallocared central expenses include the following non-cash ttems during che year
2011 2010
L£000 000
- amorosacion {see noce [1) 1,750 1,729
- depreclation (see note 10) 40 14
Aviation Hortels Support services Head office  Consohidared
2011 2010 2011 2010 201t 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
LO00 L0000 000 2000 £000 £000 L0000 £000 £000 L0080
Segment assers 3,765 5,059 15914 16,463 6517 3,688 8870 11,052 35,067 36,262
Total assets 3,765 5.0%9 15914 16,463 6,517 3,683 8,870 11,032 35067 36,262
Segment labilitics 437 Gad 1,04  L,106 2,080 1831 268 771 4189 4352
Toral liabilicies 437 644 1,404 1106 2,080 1,851 268 771 4,189 4,352
D preciation — 518 124 54 292 292 40 14 456 678
Amortisanion of ncangible
ASSETs - - - - - - 1,750 1,729 1,750 1,729
5 Group net operating costs
2011 2010
£000 L0000
Cost of sales 2 360 2,754
Admniserarn e expenses 9,602 8311
Ner operatng costs 12,162 11.045
Aduoumserateve expenses mnclude manggoment related overheads for operanions and head office
Qperating costs include
Depreciition of property plant and equapni ne 436 678
Amorosacion of intangibles (other chan goodwill) 1,750 1,729
Operating lease rencils
— Land and buildings 12 33
Staff costs 2 386 2,236
Gain on investments 16 361
Auditors’ remuneranon
2011 2010
L000 L0000
Fees payable to the Company s Auditors for
— The audit of the Group's annual finanaal scacemencs Pe 100
— The audit of the Company’s subsidiarics pursuanc to legislation 30 20
Total audit fees 140 120




LonZ1m Plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011 34
Notes to the financial statements e
6 Personnel expenses
‘I he aggregare remuneration comprised (including Txecunive Direcrors)
2011 2010
L000 LO00
Wages and salaries 2512 2,143
Compulsory social securiey contributions 74 93
2,586 2,236
I'he average number of employees (indludimyg Fxecunive Directors) was
2011 201¢
No No
Support services 108 179
Horcls 157 145
Head office 7 7
362 331
2011 201¢)
L0000 £000
Remuncranon of Direcrors
Directors cmoluments (sce note 30) 240 444
7  Net finance (costsYincome
2011 2010
LOO0 £0086)
Recognised 1nincome statement
Net gamn on financral instruments designated at fur value chrough profic or loss - 301
Bank 1ncerest recewvable - 4
Loan incerest recervable 1¥3 -
Foreign exchange gain - 64
Finance income 183 439
Forcign exchange loss (411) -
Bank inrerest payable (147) (i0)
Finance costs {(358) am
Nt finance (costs¥income (375) 429

I'he foreign exchange loss of £411k (2010 gain of £64k) has anisen on the rranslacton of mrer-company balances
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8 Taxauon
Income tax recognised 1n the income statement
2011 2010
A0 EOO0
Current tax expense
Current period 112 63
Deferred tax expensef{credin)
Originarton and reversal of emporary diftercnces (154) (645)
Total income tax credit 1n iIncome statement (42) (582)
Reconcihanon of effective tax rate
2041 20 14)
L0000 L0
Loss before rax (GX:100) (5,716)
Income tux using the U K corporarion tax rare 289 (2010 289%) (L,851) (1 600)
Nce losses where no group rehief is availuble 1,851 1,600
Doferred tax
2011 2010
L90190.0] L0000
Charge rclating to inangible assers - -
Relating ro losses 1 subsidiarics (154) (645)
(154) (645)

Corporarion tax s caleularad as 2857 of rhe estimarcd assessable loss for the year Taxanon for other jurisdictions s

caleulared ac the rares prevaling i che respecnive jurisdicnions

Deferrcd can 1 recognised as an asset on the basi that che Group will gonerae future profics ro otbet aganse che asset

The usset 1s dersved from the losses which che Group has experienced o dace

9  Loss per share

Lhe walculation of the bisic and dilunive loss per share 1s based on the tollowing

Loss
2011 2010
L0400 000
Loss for the purposes of basic loss per share bemng ner loss actniburable to
equity holders of the parenc (5 988) (4,373)
Lffect of dilutive potencual ordinary shares - -
Loss for the purpuses of dilured loss per share (5,988) (4,379)
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9  Loss per share (connnued)

Number of shares

2011 2010

No No

000s 000s

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic loss per share 48,207 35,215
Fffect of dilutive porential ordinary shares

— Share options 500 500

Weighred average number of ordimary shares for the purposes of ddurted loss per share 48,707 35715

In the current year and rthe previous year, the Group mude a loss and rthe etfect of the share oprions 15 rhercfore
anri-dhilurive

10 Property, plant and equipment
2011 Group

Long

Irechold  leaschold Lurmiture

land and  land and Plantand Motor fixtures Hcld

buildings buwldings machinery vehicles and fitings  Subtocal for sale Total

£O00 £O00 1000 LO00 £000 OO0 L0000 £00

Cost or valuanon
At | Scpranber 2010 12,542 4,443 486 318 1,289 19,078 4,171 23,249
Additions 1n year 46 - 387 224 354 1011 - 1011
Disposals i year - - — (-49) (2) (51 (351)  (402)
Fair value adjusrment (153 - - - - (153) (83%) (1,008)
Revaludarion I 298 — — - — 1,298 — 1,298
Effecs of movements o forcign
cxchinge {(634) 53 (2D (8) (10) (620 (240) (860
Balance ar 31 August 2011 13,099 4 496 852 485 1631 20563 2,725 23,248
Accumulated deprecianon
Ar 1 Seprember 2010 117 - 53 112 248 530 614 1144
Adjusrment re disposals . - — (20} - (20) — (20}
Deprecanion charge for the year 43 - 58 12 243 456 - 456
Balance ar 31 August 2011 160 — LIt 204 491 966 614 1,580
Carrying amounts
At 31 August 2011 12,939 4 494 741 281 40 19597 2,111 21,708

At 31 August 2010 12425 4,743 433 206 1Ol 18548 5357 22105
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10 Property, plant and cquipment (contnued)
Frechold tand and buildings

Freehold land and buildings, relaning o Leapard Rock Horel, were revalued at 31 August 2011 by C K Holland, an
Independent Valuer on the basis of market value

Frechold ind and buildings, relacing to Medalspor and Payner were revalued ar 31 August 2011, by 'T W R E Zimbabwe
(Pvr) Lrd, a firm of Independent Valuers, on rthe basis of marker value

I he valuarions conform to Interracional Valuation standards and were based on recent muarket transacoions of arms length
rerms for similar propereies

On 31 August 2011, had frechold land and baildings been carnied ar historical cost less accumulaced depreciarion therr
carrying amount would be approximarely £9 6 million (2010 L9 7 mulhon) ‘The revaluation surplus 1s disclosed
note 17

Valuanions

ATdM

Long lcaschold land and buildings

[ he valuc of long lcaschold land and buildings was independently valued by JHIE Real Estate Mozambique, as at 21 Jun
2011, on the basrs of marker value

Celsys and Madlchem

Revaluanon — plane and cquipment

The plant and equipment ar Celsys Princ was independencly valued by Mr A Wesr in Zimbabwe, as ar 30 June 2008
Orher assers were valued by the Directors Fair value was derermmined by reference to marker evidence The Directors
consider the fur vilue ar rhe reporting dare ro not be marenally ditferent trom the carrying value

Paynet

Revalvanon — properrty

A professional valuarion on freehold Lind and buildings was made by TWR L Zimbubwe (Pve) Luniged of USS1 750 000
(£1,070,402) uc 31 August 2011 Far valud ar 31 August 2011 was made by refercnce 1o mirker evidence “1The Direcrors
consider the fur value of other assers at the reporning date te not be macerwally different from che carrying value
Leopard Rock

Revaluation — land and builldings

A professional valustion on freehold land and butldings was made by C K Tlolland of USS18 500 000 (L11 315 677) ac
31 August 2011 Fair value at 31 August 2011 was made by rcference to murker evidence The Directors comsider che
fair vakue of other assers ar che reporung date w not be matcrally difterent from che carrying value

Mcdalspot

Revaluation — property

A professtonal valuation on treg hold land and buildings was made by 1| W R E Zimbabwe (Pve) Limited of US$2,200,000
(€1 345 648) ar 31 August 2011 Fair value ae 31 August 201 1 was made by reference o market evidence 1he Direceors
consider the fair value of other assets ac che reporting date o not be maternally differcnc from the carrying value

Assets held for sale

At the year end, LonZim held assces to the value of £2,1T11,000 for sale This 18 made up of 2 arrcrafe which are bang
acavely markered and the Company would hope to find buyers within che next yer
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10 Propcrey, plant and equipment (continued)
2010 Group
Long

Freehold leaschold Furmre

land and  land and Plantand  Motor fixtures Held

buddings  builldings machinery vehicles and fictngs  Subtotal for sale Total

£000 L0} £O00 £000 L£000 £000 L0 LON0

Cost or valuation
At | Seprember 2009 9,216 4,863 304 320 644 15,347 4,010 19357
Additions in year 638 - 367 47 6553 1 705 - 1,705
Disposals 1in year — - (56) {16) (6) (88) — (88)
Assers written off - - (142) - — (142) - (142
Revaluation 2 546 - - - - 2,546 - 2546
Effece of movements in foraign
exchange 142 {(420) 7 (3 2 (290) 161 (129
Balance at 31 August 2010 12,542 4443 486 318 1289 19078 4,171 23,249
Accumulated depreciation
Ar | Sepramber 2009 8 - 24 43 101 176 297 473
Adyusement re disposals - - - (7 - N - (7}
Deprecienion charge for the year 109 - 29 76 147 361 317 678
Balance at 31 August 2010 117 - 53 112 pat 530 6la 1 14+
Cﬂrr)’l l'lg 4Amounts
Ar 31 Augusr 2010 12,425 4,405 433 206 1,041 18,548 53,557 22,105
At 31 Augusc 2009 9 208 4,863 280 277 543 15,171 5715 18444

Valuations

Long lcaschold land and buildings

1 he value of long fessehold Land and buildings 18 included at the Dirccrors” valuation st 31 Auguse 2010 The Dirggrors
obtained evidence of observable prices 1 an acove markee o determine cherr valuaoon The Darectors consider che fair
valuc ac che reportung dace 1s nor materially difference from the carrying value

Revaluation

The plane and equipmont at Celsys Prine has been independenddy valued by Mr A West in Zimbabwe, as 1c 30 June

2008 Ocher asscrs were valued by che Direcrors Fair value was decermimed by reference to marker evidence

I he

historical cost of plant and machinery which was revalucd in the previous period was LNl and the resulung revaluation
of £232,000 has been raken to revaluioion rescrve
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10 Properry, plant and cquipment (conunucd)

2011 Company

Furniture
Motor fixtures
vehicles  and fitungs Total
£000 £ 000 L£000
Cost or valuatuon
At | Seprember 2010 37 5 42
Addinions i year Q20 8 98
Balance at 31 August 2011 127 15 140
Accumulated deprecianion
At 1 Scprember 2010 15 3 14
Depreciation charge tor che year 36 3 39
Balance at 31 August 2011 51 6 57
Carrying amounts
At 31 August 2011 75 8 83
At 31 August 2010 22 2 2¢
2010 Company
Furnmture
Motor fixtures
vehiddes  and fitungs Total
L0 L0000 LOOO
Cost of valuations
Ac | Seprember 2009 57 5 42
Additions i year - - —
Balance at 31 August 2010 37 5 42
Accumulated deprecranion
At | September 2009 3 1 I
Deprecianion charge for che year 12 2 14
Balancc at 31 August 2010 15 3 13
Carrying amounts
Ar 31 August 2010 22 2 24

At 31 August 2009 34 4 38
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11 Intangible asscts

Group Company

Non-
compete Brand Sol  Software Casino
Goodwill agreement name Aviation  licences  lhicences Total Total
1000 LO) L0000 1000 LOK) 1000 L000 LIHN)

Cost
At ! Seprember 2010 4,325 7,290 770 270 774 6&2 14,k11 7 290
Addinions — — - - 661 - 661 -
Fair value adjustmenr — - — (192) — - (192) -
Balance at 31 August
2011 4,325 7,290 770 78 1435 682 14,580 7 290
Amornsation
Acr | Seprember 2010 - 3,645 97 78 256 176 4,252 3,645
Amorasauon for the year - 1325 78 - 212 135 1750 1,325
Balance at 31 August
2011 - 4970 175 78 468 311 6 002 4,970
Carrying amounts
At 31 Auguse 2011 4,325 2,320 595 - 967 371 8578 2,320
At 31 August 2010 4,325 3,645 675 192 518 506 9,859 3 645

Amortisation

I'he amorusation charge 15 recognised 1in the administration ¢xpenses (note 5) m che mcome statemene The remaning
amorcisation porod ar 31 Auguse 2011 s 21 mondhs for che non-compete agreament and 33-91 monchs for other
intangibles

Goodwall

As ar 31 August 2011, the consohidarcd statemene of financial posiiion mcluded goodwill of £4,325k Goodwill 1y
allocated o the Group s cash-generating unies ('CG LS ™), or groups of cush-gencratng unies char are expoered to bencfie
from the synergics of the busingss combmation that gave rise o che goodwill as follows

2011 20110
Cash gencraning umit (CGU) Primary reporung scgment LHK) LU}
Celsys Support services 1 958 1,958
Millchem SUPPOLL services 1,438 1438
FMNA Supporc services 367 367
Paynet SUPpOUTE ALEVILES 562 562

4,325 4.325

Esumates and judgements

I he Durecrors believe char the esumate 1ind judgements used 10 preparing these financial scarements would not have 4
mireral impace on the cirrying values of the mrangible assers disclosed ibove
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Il Inmangible asscts (contnued)

Esumates and judgements (conunued)

There have been no indications of tmpaiement relating o the CGUs or groups of CGUs to which goodwall has been

allocated and  accordingly che disclosures chae follow relute co the imparrment test that s required to be conducted vn

an annudl basis

’I he carrying value of goodwill has been assessed wich reterence o value in use over 5-10 years reflecting ehe projecred
cash flows of each of che CGUs or group of CGUs based on the most recent foreaast A forecast peniod of 5-10 years
has been used as this 15 reflecuive of the Board’s view of the long term investment potential i these Zimbabwean
subsidiaries A forecast period of 5 years hus been used for ForgerMeNor Africa (BVI) Linuted

Growth rutes for the period not covered by the forecast are based on o range of groweh rates thac reflece che products,
industries and countries 1 which che relevane CGU or group of CGUs operate Groweh rates have been caleulaced
based on management’s expecred forecast volumes and market share mcreases on normalisation of the Zimbabwean
ceonomy

[ he key assumprions on which the cash flow projecoions for the most recent forecast are based relate to discount rates,
groweh rates, expecred changes 1 selling prices and dircet coses Key assumprions also include consideranion of the
period to normulisation of the Zimbabwean economy where the range was berween 1 and 5 vears

Lhe wash flow projecoions have becn discounted using rares based on the Group’s pre-tax weighred average cost of
capttal The rate used was 12 5%

L he growth rates applied 1n che value i use calculacions for goodwill allocared o each of the CGUs or groups of
CGUs chat i sigmificant to the toral careying amounc of goodwill were 10 1 range berween 0% and 5%

Changes mn selling price and direct costs are based on past resules and expectinions of future changes m che market

In respect of the value n use calculanions cashflows have been considercd tor both the conservanve and the full
forecast potentiad of furure cash-flows with no impact o the valuaoon of goodwill

Impaurment loss

Ihe Group tests goodwall annually for imparrment or more frequendy of there are ndications chie goodwill mighte be

imparred

Fhe Directors belicve thae che vatue of the Group's mvesements are long term and will only be reilised on che eveneual

full recovery of the Zimbabwean economy ‘L he Directors do nor believe any impairment to goodwill 1s necessary
y my ¥

Orther intangible asscts

'he Group tests other inangible assets for imparment if there are sndicanions chac they maghe bo impaired

[ he amoresarion periods for other intangible assets are

Non-compete agreement 5V years
Licences 5-6 years
Brand names 7 years

Non-compete agreement

[ he agreement covers a penad of five and a halt vears and under 1rs terms, withour the express permission of LonZim
Ple Lonrho Ple cannor

L 4

iInvest N carry on or be engaged or in any way be incerested 10 any compering business ot LonZim which s carried
on 1 /Zunbabwe or the Bera Corndor
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11 Intangible asscts (continued)

Non-compete agreement {conunued)

¢ provide any of che services provided o any other organizatien compeong 10 Zimbabwe or the Beira Cornidor,

* induce or assist any other person or company to do any of the chings that Lonrho weself 1s prohibiced from

I'he non-comperc agreement was onigimally recognised as an incangible asser valued at £7 3 mulhon being the value of
the shares ssued Tt was deemed impracrical to use any other basis for the valusrion

LonZim has expressly consenced to Lonrho carrying our certam agriculwural acovitics withm Zimbabwe and following

che acquisicion of AldM, the operation of that development in the Betra Corndor

12 Investments in subsidianies and associates

I'he Company has invesrments 1n che following subsidiaries and assoctares which principally aftected che profits or aet
assers of the Group 1o avord a statement of excessive lengeh, derails of mvesements which are not sigmificant to the Group
erther 1n terns of revenues or assets have been omateed

Country of Ownership

Incorporation Prinapal Activity interest

LonZim Holdings Limiced + Isle of Man Investment company 100%
Celsys Lumited 7imbibwe  Commeraal and seeunicy printing/ ATMs - 6095
Gardoscrve (Pve) Limicted /1imbabwe Chemical products 100%
Peak Minc (Pvr) Limiced Z1mbabw Investment company 1005
Rex Mining Holdmgs Pve Lomited Z1mbabwe Investment company 100%
Blueberry Internanional Services Linited  Briosh Virgin Islands Investment company 100%
Blueberry Print (Zambia) Limiced Briosh Virgin Islands Investment company 100%
Wardlaw (1989) Limiced United Kingdom Investment company 100%
Morningdale Propernics Limiced Zimbabwe Investment company 100%
Medalspoc (Pve) Limiced 7 1mbabwe Invesrment company 100%:
Aldeamento Turstico de Macun SARL + Morambique Hotet development BO%
ForgeeMeNot Africa {(BVI) Limiced British Virgin Islands Telecommunication software company 514
Paynetr Limiced Maurioius Payroll bureau 100%
Payner Zimbabwe (Pyve) Limired Z1mbabwe Pay roll bureau LO05F
Autopay (Pvt) Limated /1mbabwe Payroll burews 100%
Iradance (Pve) Limaited /1mbabwe Microfinance company S51%
L¢ Har (Pvo) Limiced Zimbabwe Investmont company 10054
LonZim Air (BVI) Lumited Bricsh Virgin Islands Avition compdny 1007%
LonZ1m Hoccls Linmieed Isle of Man Investment company 100%
Lyons Atrica Holdimgs BV The Netherlands Investmenr company 100%
Leopard Ruck Howl Company (Pvt) Limuced 7 imbabwe Horel and Golf Resort 100%

+ Held dirceely by LonZam Pl

‘I he direct invesemenes in subsidiaries hald by che Company are stared ae cost 1 his s subjece o imparrment reseing

For a full hist of subsidiaries refer to note 31
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I3 Other mvestments

Group Group
2011 2010
L£000 OO0
Balance at 1 deprember 101 1,269
Acquisitions 37 -
Disposals a0 (1,234)
Unrealised gain - 66
At 31 August 67 101
14 Inventories
Group Group
2011 2010
1000 LOOG
Guame stock 50 44
Finished goods 448 295
198 339
15 Trade and other recavables
Group Company Group Company
2011 2011 2010 2010
£000 L£000 L0000 £000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - 23 314 - 21,150
"Lrade recervables 1,629 - 1,106 -
Orhcr recervables 1 078 352 1,634 395
Pre-payments and accrued mcome 53 - 162 16
2760 23 666 2,922 21 761

The werage credit period wken on sales of goods 1s 84 days No interest 15 charged on recervables

Included 1n crade and other recervables s a balunce of £611,658 which s noc due mn less chan one years oume 1 he loan
1s repayvable 1n 2 years ome and bears interest ae 157 per annum  The loan bears no encumbrances

The Directors consider the carrying unount of trade and other recervables approxnmates cheir bar value In determinimg
the recoverability of the trade recervable the Group considers any change 1n che credic quality of the erade recervable from
the dare credit was 1mnally granted up to the seporung date ‘Lhe concentration ot credit risk s himited duc w0 the
customer buse being large and unrelated  Accordingly the Directors believe that there s no furcher credic provision
required 1n excess of the allowance for doubetul debes

Crodit risk

The Groups credit nish 15 primarily aceriburable to 1ts trade recervables  [The amounts presented in che statement of
finantial position are net of allowances for doubtful recervibles An allowance for impairmaent 18 made where there s an
idenofied loss evene which based on previous experience s evedenee of o reaction in the recoverability of che cashflows

Lhe Group has no significant concentrarson of credir risk, with ¢xposure spread over i large number of counrerparties and
CUSTOIMETS
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16 Cash and cash equuvalents
Group Company Group Company
2011 2011 2010 2010
£000 L000 LOM) L0000
Bank balances 658 365 291 38
Bank overdrafes (29 - — -
Cash and cash equivalents 629 365 291 38
17 Capital and reserves
Reconciluunion of movement in capital and reserves
Group Share
Re- bascd I"oreign Non-
Share Share valuation pavment Retained exchange controlling Total
capreal promium rescrve  reserve  carmings  rosorve Total  mntcreses Fquiry
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 August 2009 3 32,355 734 165 3 (681) 32,579 895 33,474
Share 1ssues 1 B,112 - - - - 1,113 - 1,113
Revaluanion - - 2 546 - - - 2 546 - 2 546
Loss for che year - - - —  (4,575) —  (4,379) (759 (5,134)
Exchange difference on
cranslation of overseas operations  — - (550 - 76 261 (193) 104 (89
Balance ar 31 August 2010 4 33,467 2,750 165 (4,296)  (420) 31,670 240 31,910
Share 155u¢s 1 4,845 - - - - 4,844 - 4844
Revaluanion — - 1,208 - - - 1,298 — 1,298
Loss for the year — - - —  (5948) —  (5988) (381 (6 569)
Exchange difference on
cranslacion of overseas operations — - (150 - - (523) (653) 48 (605)
Balance at 31 August 2011 5 3R.310 3914 165 (10 284) 943) 51,171 (293) 30 878
Company Share based
Share Share paymunt Retained
capital promium resere carnimgs Total
1000 L0040 £0O00 LU0 L0000
Balance ar 31 August 2009 3 32,355 165 4,151 28,369
Share 1ssue 1 1112 — — {1113)
Loss for the period - - - (3,540) (3,540)
Balance at 31 August 2010 4 33,467 165 {7,694) 25,942
Share 1ssuc 1 4 843 - - 4 844
Loss for the penod - - - (3,461) (3,-61)
Balance at 31 August 2011 5 38,510 165 (11 159) 27,325
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18 Sharc caputal

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
2011 2010

No L0000 No LOO0
Authorised
Qrdinary £0 0001 shares 54,145,469 5 36 351,525 4
Issued fully paid
Ac } Seprember 2010 36,331 525 4 32,076,000 3
Issued tn period 17,813,944 1 4255,525 1
At 31 August 2011 54,145 469 5 36,531,525 4

The Group has also wssued share oprions (see note 19) 500 000 shares are held 1 reserve  issue 10 the event char thesc
optiens are ¢aercised

The holders of ordiniry shares are entitled to recewve dividends as declared from rime o ome and ire enorled to one vore
per share ar meetngs of the Compamy Al shares rank equally with regard to the Companmy s ressdun] wsets

[ he Direcrors are authorised tn any period berweon consecunve annual general meenings, to ifloc any number of ordinary
shares on such rerms as chey shall i cherr dwcrenon determine up ro such maximum numbcr as represenes 50 per cenc
of the sued share caprtal ae the begmning of such period Purcher ordinary shares may be allotred on rerms deternmned
by che Directors bur subjece to the pre-empuion rights prescribed by Secrion 36 of che Isle of Man Companies Act 2006

Sharc Premum

The share premiwm represcats the value of che premium arsing on the share 1ssue i the currene year of 17,813,944
ordinary shares at a price of (0 28p per share net of ssue costs ot L1443k and previcus share ssue of 36,450,000 ordinary
shares ac 4 price of £1 00 per share net of ssuc costs of 12,753k, less the cost of purchasing and cancclling 4 3724 000
sharcs ar 30 5p per share plus the promium ansing an the share ssuc ot 4 255 525 ordinary shares ar a price of 27 5p per
share ncr of 1ssuc costs of £58k

Revaluarion reserve

I he revaluanion rescrve relaces to properey, plant and cquipmaonc which has been revalued i the Zimbabwean subsidiarics
Celsys, Paynet Leopard Rock Hotel, Millchem and Medalspot ind leasehold Land in Bara (ATdM)

Share based payment reserve

1 he share based payment reserve comprises of the charges arising trom che caleulacion of che share based payment posted
to the income statement 1 2008

19 Share opuons

The following share options over ordinary shares were granted under an Unapproved Share Opoon scheme

No Market

of share price per

Date options Exercise Peniod during share at

Name granied granied price which exerusable date of grant
Paul 1leber 1L 122007 500,000 150p 11122007 - 1012 2012 100p

In weordance wath IFRS 2 “Share-bised pay ments’ share oprions granted have been measured ar tar value and recognised
as an expense m the ncome statemene with a corresponding ncrease in equity (other reserves) The far value of rhe
options granted b been estmuced ar the dice of grane using the Black-5choles oprion-price in model  he esamared
valuc ot the vprions granted on 11 12 2007 was L165,000
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19 Share opuons (conunucd)

Opoions may be exercised 1n whole or 1n parc unul the expiry of the exercise period Holders of the opuiens are enuded
to receve notice of certan proposed transacoions or events of the Company which may dilute or otherwise attece cherwr
oprions, and muy exercise or be deemed o have exercised their opuons prior to the veeurrence thereof  1he Company shall
keep available sufficient authorised bue unissued share capical co sacisty the exetcrse of the oprions Ordimary Shares 1ssued
pursuane to an exercise of the oprions shall rank pars paswe e all respeces with che Company's existing Ordinary Shares
save as regards any nights arcachig by reference to o record date prior w the recerpr by the Company of the notice of
excrcise of oprions  Fhe Company shall apply to admic to ceading on AIM the Ordinary Shares issued pursuint to the
exercise of options

I'he following assumptions have been used

Datc of grant
11122007

Share price ar vesting dace 1 December 2007 100p
Exercise price 150p
Expeced volatlicy 4%
Expecred life 5 years
Lxpecred dividends 000
Risk-free interest race 5 (%

Volacilicy has been calculated by rcference to indusery indices ar vesting dates
All share options vested at date of grant and che basis of setdlement s 10 shares of the Company

1 he number and weighted average exercise price of share oprions are as follows

2011
Weighted average No
cxeruse price of options
Pence No
Exercisuble ar 1 Seprember 2010 150 500,000
Qurtstandhing at 31 August 2011 150 500,000
LExercisable at 31 Auguse 2011 150 500,000

1 he options ourstanding ac che year end have an exercise price of 150p and a weighred avirage contractual life of 3 years

I'he cxpecred volarilicy 1s wholly based on che huscoric volundicy of simular companies, calculated based on the remaming
life of the share opnions

20 Provisions

Group Company Group  Company

2011 2011 2010 2010

1000 L0000 LOO0 LO00

Provisions 628 628 628 628

Provisions relate to an ahienation” agreement wich the Mosambique Governmene which was assumed as part ot the
consideranion for the acquisioion of Aldeamen ro Turstice de Macunr SARL The provision 1s for US$1 5 nulhion
(£09 nullion) The amount paydable by LonZim Plc s capped at USS1 3 mullion (£0 9 mithion) und s expected o be
settted no earlier than 36 monchs from che reportng darce

The Direcrors are of che opimion that there 15 o 70%: probabnlicy char this habilicy will become due and che habibiey has
becn adjusecd to reflect this

Subsequent to che yvear end, the invesoment m substdiary was sold (sec note 32) chus releasing this provision
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21 Deferred tax

Recognised deferred habilitres

I'he following are the majer deferred tix habilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during rthe current

year

Group
Accelerated tax 2011 Accelerated tax 2010
deprecianion Toral depreciauon Toral
CO00 LOO0 L£000 LO00
Ar | Seprember 933 933 909 909
Orcher movements {118) (118) 24 24
At 3] August 815 815 933 933

There have been no deferred assets and labilities off ser m che currene period

Recognised deferred assets

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the Group and movernents thercon during the current year

Group
Accelerated tax 2011 Accelerared tax 2010
depreciation Total depreciation Total
L0 L0000 LO00 L000
At 1 September 645 045 77 77
Recogniscd in ycar in respect of current trading losses 150 150 571 571
Recognised directly 1n reserves 3 3 (3) (3}
At 31 August 798 798 645 645
22 Intcrest-bearing borrowings
Group  Company Group  Company
2011 2011 2010 2010
£000 £000 L0000 £000
Shore terin loans 917 917 963 9653
917 u17 965 963

Lhe loan 1s secured by immovable property held by Medalspot (Pve) Limited and Le Har {(Pve) Limiced
repayable on 31 May 2012 and bears interest at a rate of 209% per annum

23 Trade and other pavables

I he loan 1s

Group Company Group Company

20114 2011 2010 2010

LO00 LOOO LOO0 L£000

Tradc payables 751 - 943 -
Non-trade payables and acerued eapenscs 890 265 812 656
1,640 265 1,787 636

Trade payables 1ind accruals principally comprise amounes outstunding for trade purchases ind on-going costs  1he

average credit period taken for crade purposes 5 121 days

The Direcrors conswder char che carrying wmount of trade payables approximates o their fur value
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24 Notes to the statement of cash flows
Group Company

2011 20110 2011 2010

£000 LO00 L£000 000
Loss for che year (6,569) (5,134) (3,461) (3.540)
Amortisation of intangible assers 1 750 1,729 1,325 1 32%
Depreciation of property, planc and equipment 456 678 40 14
Finance income (183) (439 {13} -
Finance costs 147 - - -
Fair value adjuscment of proporry, plant & equipment 1,008 - - -
Fair valuc adjustment of intangibles 192 - - -
Loss on sale of property, planc and equupment (295) - - -
Increase in provisions - - - 140
Provision discount - 1453 — -
Gains on 1nvestments (16} (361) - —
Operating cash flows before movemenes 1n working capital (3,510% (3 384 (2,159) (2,061)
I redase 10 invencories (159) (143 - —
Decrease/(increasehin recervables 162 19 (1 905) (1 425)
(Decrcase)/ increasc 1n payables (la7) (620 (372) 38
Cash used m operations (3 654) (4,130 (4,416) {5 446)
Incerest paid (117 (14) - -
Incerest recerved 185 - 43 25
Ner cash used in operaring activitics (3,618) 4 143) (4,373) (3,421)

Cush and cash equivalents (which are presenced as a single class of assets on the face of the starement ot finencial posicion)
comprise cash ar bank and other short wem highly hauid invesoments with a maturity of three months or less

25 Financial instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from s use of financal inseraments

o credit risk
¢+ hgudity risk

*  muarket risk

1 his note presents informacion abour the Groups exposure to each of the dbove risks, the Group's objec tives, poliaes and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's munagement of capital Further quanoitaceve disclosures are
1ncduded chroughout these consolidated financial statements The Board ot Directors has overall responsibalicy for che
estabbishment and oversight of the Groups rsk managemens framework

Credit risk management

Credic risk refers co the risk chae a counterparty will defaulc on 1es contraceual obligatons resultng in financial loss o
the Group The Group has adopred & policy of only dealing wich credicworthy counterparties and obruning sufficient
collaccral wherc appropriate, as 2 means of mingaung the risk of financial loss from defaults The Group's exposure and
the credie ranings ot 1es counecrparties are conanuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions conduded 15

spread amongst approved counterpartics
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25 TFinancial instruments contnued)
Credit risk management (contmued)

Trade recevables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas Ongoing
credit evaluetion 1s performed on the financial condition of accounts recervable and, where appropriate, credic guarancec
imsurance cover 1s purchased The Group does not have any significant credic risk exposure wo any single counterparty or
any group of counterparcies having similar characterssaics The credic sk on hquid funds and denvanve finangial
mnsteuments s limited because che counterparries are banks wich high credic-ranings assigned by internanional credic
LATINE Agencles

L he carrying amount of financial assets recorded 1 the financial staternents, nee of any allowances for losses, represents
the Groups maximum caposure to credic risk without kg account of the value of any collateral obrained Ac the
reporting date, there were no sygnificant credit risks

Exposure to credit risk

The carrymyg amount of financial assets represencs the maximum ceedic exposure Therefore, the maamum exposure w

credit risk ac the reporomg dace was £3,336k (2010 £3,051K) baing the totdl of the wrrying amount of financial assers,
excluding equity mvestinents as shown m the table below

2011 2010
L OO0 L0
Cash and cash equivalents 629 291
Truade and ocher recenvables 2,707 2,760
3,336 3,051

The maximum exposure ro credir risk for crade and orher recetvables ar the roporring dare by geographic regron was

2011 2010
£000 L0000
East Africa 483 779
7 imbabw 2,224 1,941
2,707 2760

1 he maxumum exposure to credit risk for trade recervables at the reporning date by type of counterparcy was

2011 2010

£000 L£000

Customers 1 629 1,106
L he agewng of trade recervables ac the reporting date was

Gross  lmparrment Gross Imparrment

2011 2011 2010 2014

L) £000 L£O00 L0000

Not past due 1,629 — 1,106 —

Liquidity risk management

Ligquidity risk 1s the risk rthar che Group will encounter difficuley 1 meenng che obligavions assocuted with s financial
habikities chat are settled by delivering cash and another financial asset




LonZaum Plc Annual Report & Accounes 2011 30

Notes to the financial statements commud

25 Financial instruments {(continucd)
Liquidity risk managemene (continuecd)

Ultinace responsibilicy for hiquidicy risk management rests with che Board of Directors, which has buile an appropriate
hquidity risk management framework for the managemenc of the Group’s short medium and long rerm tunding and
liguidity management requirements ‘The Group muanages hquidity nisk by muintuming adequate reserves. banking
faciliies and reserve borrowing facilicies by connimuously monreoring forecast and accual cash flows and matching che
muaturicy profiles ot financial assets and lubilities

The following are the concractual maturrties of financial lubilines, including estimated interest paymentes and excluding
the effect of netting agreements

2011 2010

Carrying Contractual lyewrr lio <2 2 to <5 5vears Carrving Contractual | year |t <2 210 <5 5 years

amount  cash flows  or less edrs yeurs +  amount  cash flows  or less years years +

£000 £000  £000 £000 £000 1000 £000 L0000 £000 £000 L000 L£000

Bank overdrafts 29 29 29 - - - - - - - - -

Irade payables 751 751 751 - - - 945 945 945 - - -
Intcrest bearing

borrowings 917 917 917 - - ~- 963 963 963 - - —

1 697 1.697 1,697 — - - 1,908 1,908 1,908 - - -

In respect of income-carning financial assets and interese-bearing financial luabilines, che following table indicares therr
effecuve mnterest rates at the reporting date and the periods 1n which they re-price

2011 2010

Etfective 3 months LEffective 3 months

1nterest rate Total or less  1ntcrest rate Tortal or less

i $.000 £O00 %% [14]0,0) £000

Cush and cash cquivalenes 05 658 638 05 291 291
Bank overdrafrs 0s 29 (29) - - -
Intcrest bearing borrowings 200 (917) (917) 200 (963) (963)
(288) (288) (672) (G72)

Foreign currency risk management

the Group 1s exposed to foregn currency rish vn sales purchases and borrowings thac are denomimated n a currency
other than Pounds Sterling  [he currencies giving rise to chis risk are primanly the US Dollar and Mozambigue Menical
In respect of other monetary assets and habilicses held 1n currencies other than Pounds dterling, the Group ensures chat
the net exposure s kepr to an acceprable level by buying or selling toreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term 1mbalances

The carrying amount of the Groups foreign currency denominated monetry assets and menetary habihoes ae the
reporting date 1s as follows

US Mozambiquc

Dollars Mcricals Totai

£000 £000 £000

Cash and cash equnalents 229 37 266
Trade payables 790 - (790
Otcher payables (654) — (654)
Trade recenables 1,544 - 1,544
Orcher recervables 538 -~ 388

Nec eaposure 917 37 usS4
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25 Finanaal mstruments (contunucd)
Foreign currency risk management {(contnued)

The tollowing significunt exchange races apphed during the year

Reporting Reportng

Average date mad Average date mud

rate spot rate rate SpoT rate

2011 2011 20E0 2010

Mozambigque Mecicals S0 742 45 162 47 BRY 38 323
IS Dollars 1 604 1 635 I 366 1 367
Net assers Nert assets

2011 2010

£000 L0000

Mozambique Meticals 1,157 2338
US Dollars $9I11 3,650
10,068 5,968

‘I he Company does not have any exposure w foreign currencies at the reporting date (2010 LNl

Sensiovity analysis

In managing nterest rate and currency risks the Group aimes o reduce the unpace of short-term flucruations on the
Group's carmings Over che longer-term however, permanent changes in foreign exchange and mecrest rates would have
an mmpacr on consolidated carnings A 109 movement 1n the US Dollar rare would resulr m a £810k movemenr in ner
monerary assees This risk 1 not considercd marcerial as, as of 1 Seprember 2011, the Company changed its reporting
currency to rhe US Dollar

Mozambique Mcticals balance s not trading end cherefore a sension ity analysis has not been performed

Interest rate risk management

Lhe Group s not exposed to mterest race risk Its sigle loan of £917k 15 held on a fixed interest rate thus muctiganing
the risk

L he Company and the Group’s exposures to interest rates on finuncl assets and finuncial lubilicies are detatled 1o the
hquudity risk munagement secoon of thiy note

The Groups sensitivity o incerest rares s low duc to cash balances held

Capital management

The Board’s policy s o muncam 4 strong capieal base 0 a3 to mamtun mnvestor, credicor and market confidence and w
sustamn furure development of che business 1 he Board of Direcrors monitors the return on capiral, which che Group
defines as ner operaning income divided by roeal sharcholders” equiry, excluding non-redecmable preference shares and
non-concrolling mrerests  The Board of Direcrors also monrtors the level of dividends to ordinary sharc holders
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25 inancial instruments (continucd)
Faur values

The fur values of financial wssers and habilicies, together wich che carrying amounts shown in the staternent of financial
position are as follows

Carrying Lair  Carrying lair

amount vajuc amount value

2011 2011 2010 2010

L0000 1000 £000 LOO0

Cash and cash equivalents (nee of bank overdrato) 629 629 291 291
Trade recervables 1,629 1 629 1,106 1,106
Iradc payables {751) (751) (945) (945)
Interest bearing loans (917) (917) (963) (963)
590 590 (511) (511)

I he farr value of assers and labihioges can be classed in chree levels
Level T — Farr values measured using quoted prices (unadjusced) 1 active markets for idenoicdl assets or habilicies

Level 2 — Fair values measured using inputs other chan quoted prices included wichin Level 1 char are observable for the
asset or lability ewcher direcely (e as prices) or indireccly (1 e derived from prices)

Leved 3 — Fair values measured using mpurs for the asset or hability thar are not based on obscrvable marker daca G e
unobscrvable inpurs)

Asat 31 Auguse 201 1, the Company holds all its finuncial instruments ac amortised ¢ost und none ar fair value Fair value
hierarchy therefore does not apply

Estimation of fair values

1 he following summarises che major methods and assumprions vsed m esomaang che fair values of financnd mstrumencs
reflected in che wable

Cash and cash equivalents {(net of bank overdraft)

Fair value approximures 1ts carrying amount largely due to the shorc-term mucurities of chis inserumenc
Intcrese-bearing loans

lair value s calculated bascd on discounted expecred furture principal and interest cash tlows

Tradc recervables / payables

For recavables 1 payables with a remaming hife of less than one year, the nononal amount s deemed 1o reflect the farr
value

26 Operanng leases
Leases as lessee

At the reportuing date  the Group had ourstanding annual commrments for furure mimimum lease pay ments under
noncancelluble aperacing feases, which fall due as follows

2011 2010
£000 LO00
Less chan one year - 12

12
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26 Opcrating leases (conunucd)
Leases as lessee (continued)

During che year ended 31 August 2011, £12k (2010 £35k) was recognised s an expense 1n the mcome statenient in
respect of operating leases

Operating lease payments represents rentals payable by the Group for certamn of 1ts properties Leascs are negotiaced for
an average cerm of 3 years and rencals are fixed tor an average of 3 years

Leases as lessor

At rhe reporring dare, the Group had outstanding annual commurments for future minimum lease receiprs under non-
cancellable operanng leases, which fall due as follows

2011 2010

L0000 LOOo

Less than one year 198 789
Beowedn one and five years 198 789
396 1,578

During the year ended 31 August 2011, £401k (2010 £901k} was recognised as revenue 1 the income statement 1n
respect of oporaring leases

Opcrating leasc reccivables represent rentals receivable by the Group for wircraft Leases are negottated for an average rerm
of 3 years and rentals are fixed for an ascrage of 5 years

27 Income statement of LonZsim Plc

I'here 15 no requirement under che Isle of Man Companies Act 2006 w present a company income statement The loss
for the year to 31 August 2011 was £3,461k (20H0 £3,540k)

28 Capital commitments

The capiral commirments 1t 31 Augost 2011 roralied £133k relinng o varous icems of plant and machinery ar Celsys
(2010 £3500k relaring to rcfurbishmenr of Leopird Rock Horcl)

There were no other capital commitments at 31 Auguse 2011

29 Contngent habilites

There were no known conningent habihinies at the reporting date (2010 £Nal)
30 Related parues

lde nuey of related parues

The Group has a relased party relacionshep with 1es subsidiaries (see note 313, and with s Direcrors and execunive officers
and wich Loneho Ple

Transactions with subsicdiaries

Transactions between the Company and 1y subsidaanies, which are related partics, have been eliminared on consolidation
and ar¢ not disclosed 1n this note  All related parry transacoions are conducted on cerms cquivalent to anms lengeh
Cransacrions
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30 Rdlared parues (continued)

Group and Company

Transactions with enties with significant influence over the enuty

Asat 11 November 2011 Lonrho Ple held 22 92% of the Company and exerts a4 signiticanc influence over the Company
At the date of hsoing on AIM the Company ssued shares to the value of £7 3 nullion to Lonrho Ple m exchange for Loncho
Plc entering into 4 non-compere agreement | he agreement covers a period of five and a half years and has been recognised

as an incangible asser with a valunoon of £7 3 mulhon on 1moal recogmoion Fhis intangible asset is being amorcsed over
the cerm of che agreement

During che year the Company was charged US$862k (£537k) by Lonrho Ple as a managemenc charge (2010 US3703k
(£453k)) Orcher recharges amounted to USSI83k (£114k) (2010 USSYTR (£59k) Asar 31 August 2011, £137k (2010
£113k) was due from the Company to Lonrho Ple

During the year Leopard Rock was charged US$102k (£66k) by Lonrho Horeds Management Services (B V1 } Limited, a
Lonrho Ple subsidiary, as 2 managemenc charge (2010 USS102k (£68k)

[ he Group leases two atrcraft to 5340 (Uganda) Limiced, a Loncho Ple subsidiary for US$52k (£34K) per month Onc of
the lcases was cancelled ac the ond of February 2011 "Ihe rotal lease income for the year to 31 Auguse 201 1 amounted
to USS485k (£296k) As ar 31 August 2011, USS518k (£317k) was due from 540 (Uganda) Limited to the Company

Fly 540 Aviation, a Lonrho Ple subsidiary, s acting as an agent in the recovery of the insurance moncey rclating to chic
LonZim Awr (BVID) Limiced awrcrafc wriceen off As ar 31 August 2011, US$100k (£61K) 1s payable from LonZun Air to
Fly 540 Aviation

Transactions with kcy managoment personnel
Key management personncl are the holding Company Direcrors and execurive officers

Paul Feber, o Non-Execunive Director, partiapates m the share opuon scheme Other Directors and key personnct are
chigible o paracipace in the share option scheme (see noce 19)

During the year £12k (2010 £16k) was charged to the Company for services performed by D50 Chareered Accountants
Jean Fllis 1s a4 partner in chis firm

I'he hey management personnel compensations are as follows
8

2011 2010
L000 L0000
Shorc-term employ e benefiss 526 350

526 550
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30 Related parncs (conninued)
Group and Company {contnued)

Total remuneraton 1s included in “Personnel expenses” (see note 6)

2011 2010
L0000 £000
Directors 240 444
Executive officers 286 106
526 550

Directors remuneration
Total Total
2011 2010
£000 L0000
D Lenigas 12 87
G White 12 87
D Armstrong 12 17
E Priestley 12 17
P Turncr 98 118
P Heber 4.4 70
J Elhs 25 24
C Orr-Fwing 25 24
240 A=y

Orther redated party transactions

Post ycar end the Company rased £917,341 from an exisung shareholder, via a plucimg of 3,988,439 sharcs ar a price of
23 pence per share w provide working capital for the Group'’s existing businesses and to provide che Company wich che
dbiliey to continue implemenning s investment strategy 1 he sharcholder s 4 substantial sharcholder 1 the Company
and thercfore 1ts participation 1t the placing 15 considered a related parry ransaction
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31 Group entities

Subsidiaries

statements conronned

Country of incorporanon

Ownership mrterest

2011 2010
LonZim Holdmgs Limited + Isle of Man 100% 100%
Celsys Limired Zimbabwe 60% 60%
Gardaoserve (Pvt) Limuted Zimbabwe 100% 100%
Peak Mine (Pvt) Limired Ziymbabwe 100% 1007
Rex Mining Holdings (Pve) Limired Zimbabwe 100% 100%
Blueberry Internationdl dervices Limired Brinish Virgin Islands 1007 100%2
Blueberry Print (Zambia) Lomited Bricish Viegin Islinds 100% 100%
Celsys Zambia Limiced Zambia 35% 35¢%
Wardlaw (1989) Limired Unired Kingdom L00% 100%
Aldeamento Turistico de Macun SARL + Morambigue s0% 80%
Southern Africa Management Services Mauritius 10097 100%
Mormingdale Properoses Linreed Zimbabwe 100% 1005
Mcdalspor (Pvt) Limaced Zimbabwe 100% 100%
Quickvese325 (Pry) Limited Souch Africa 10057 1002
Panafmed (Pry) Lunited South Africa Sl 100%
ForgetMeNot Africa (BVI) Limiced Briosh Virgin Islands S1% 51%
ForgerhcNoe Nigeria Limited Nigeria 100% 1007
Cheny skwaremba Farm (Pyo) Limiged Zimbabwe 100% 100%
Paynec Lunired AMauritus 10054 1007
Puyner Zimbabawe (Pvt) Lunied Zimbabwe 1007 100%%
Traduaner (Pve) Limiced Zmbabwe S19% 51%%
African Solutions Limiced Muauritius 100%% 1009
Lanuarna Fnecrprises (Pve)y Limited Zimbabwe 1007% 100%%
Para Meter Computers (Pve) Limiccd 7 1mbuabwe 1009 100%
Autopay (Pv) Limiced 7 imbabwe 100% 100%
L Har (Pve) Limited Z1mbabwe 100% 100%
Lonrho Propertics Ziumbabwe Limited Zimbabwe 10058 10057
LonZim A (BVI[) Limited Brioish Virgm Islands 1007% 100%
Sol Aviavion (Pvt) Limited 7Zimbabwe 907 oV
LonZam Hotels Limced Iste of Man 100% 100%%
Lyons Africa Heldings BV t he Netherlands 1007 100%
Lyons Africa Holdings Limited Fngland and Wales 100% 10057
Linus Business Opuions (Pve) Limited Zimbabwe 100% 100%
Leopard Rock Hotel Company (Pve) Limiced Zimmbabwe 10057 100%
Firsttoud Freerprises (Pve) Limited Zumbabwe 100% 100%%
W 5 Foods (Pty) Limcd South Africa 1009, 100%
LonZ1m Propernies Limated [sle uf Man 100% 100¢7
LonZmm Agribusingss (BVE) Limited British Virgin Islands 1 00% 1 00
LonZim Enterprises Limuted England & Wales 16097 1007

+ Held direetly by LonZim Ple
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32 Evcnes after the reporting datc

On 30 September 2011, LonZim completed a share purchase agreement to dispose of 1es 80% holding in A ™. o
company with a long lease on a prospective coastal development site 1 Ber, Mozambique, as part of LonZ i’ jo~w ing
focus on the economic opporcunities within Zimbabwe LonZim disposed of the 80% stake in ATdM for USSS Inillion
(£3 1 nullion) o Lonrho Hotels (Foldings) Limited, a 100% subsidiary of Lonrho Ple which has a4 22 92% miressc 1n
Lon/im, the cransaction being o relared parey transaccion for purposes of the AIM Rules, which was decmedivie and
ressonable msofar as shareholders were concerned  Proceeds from the sale are bemy recerved over 60 (qual nonehly
tnscaliments and interest accrues at 796 on che ouestunding balance

Post vear end the Company rased £917,341 from an existing shareholder via a placing of 3,988,439 shares atiprice of
25 pence per share to provide working capiral for the Groups existing businesses and ro provide rhe Companyvich che
ability o contnue implementing 1ts INVESEMent straregy

The Directors do not beheve there have been any turther material events since the reporeing dare
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Analysis of ordinary sharcholdings as at 100 November 2011

%% of % of
No total No total
of holders holdcrs of shares shares
Category of sharcholder
Individuals 78 29 77 1,002,161 1 72
Banks nomuinees and other corporate boducs 184 70 25 57,131 747 98 28
Shareholding range
1 - 5,000 103 40 08 265,046 0 46
5,001 = 50,000 Q0 34 35 1,785,845 308
50,001 — 104,000 25 9 54 Z,US‘!JL/[-‘—J 3 50
100,001 — 300,000 26 902 5,291,720 910
500,001 — 1,000,000 3 115 1,913,699 329
1,000 001 — 5,000 000 10 382 21 174,528 36 42
5,000,001 — 10,000,000 2 076 13,994 516 24 07
10 000,001 — 50,000,000 1 038 11,674,010 20 08
lotal . 262 100 00 58,135,908 100 00
Regstrars

All sdmmustracive enquines relating to shareholdings, such as queries concernming dividend payments notificioion of
change of address or the loss of a share cernificate, should be addressed w0 the Company's Registrars

Unsolicited mal

As the Companys share regster 1s, by Liw open t public inspecnion, shareholders may receve unsohicited mail from
organtsacions that use 1o as @ matling hise Sharcholders wishing o limit the amount of such mail should write to the
Mualing Preference Souicey, Freepost 29 Lon20771 London WIE 0/1







2 ) J /\/’ f\7 -,
In aczordance with
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Overseas Compantes

Regulations 2003 Statement of details of parent law and other m
information for an overseas company

Companies House

J What this form s for Y What this form 1s NOT
You may use thrs form to You cannot use this form
accompany your accounts an alteration of manner o c— rwmmvouos
disclosed under parent law with accounting require T YA1DSIRIRET T
A43 14/07/2012 #233
CAMDANMIESQ HN) IQE
Part 1 Corporate company name + Filling in this form

Please complete in typescnipt or in

Corparate name of C H m 6(&\ 9 R?Q\CA pL/ C bold black capitals

overseas company @ | Ali fields are mandatory unless

speafied or indicated by *

B |—_’_|_\|366|§|_ C—k mo?)QOG:CDOTh|s|sthenameofthecompany|n

1ts home state

UK establishment
number

Part 2 Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company

m Legislation

Please give the legisiation under which the accounts have been prepared and, ® This means the relevant rules or
if applicable, the legislation under which the accounts have been audited legisiation which regulates the
preparation and, if applicabie, the
Legislation @ ' ‘-__\,6 L e Ct m Pa rO audrt of accounts
Accounting principles
Accounts Have the accounts been prepared in accordance with a set of generally accepted |© Please insert the name of the
accounting principles? approprtate accounting organisation
or body

Please tick the appropnate box
] No Goto Section A3

‘es Please enter the name of the organisation or other
body which 1ssued those pnnciples below, and then go to Section A3

Name of organisation

by © FRSs As AvoeTeD® @4 Tae €.\

m Accounts

Accounts Have the accounts been audited? Please tick the appropnate box

S/NVGO to Section AS
Yes Go to Section A4

Department for Busmaess CHFPQOO
Innovation & Skills 05/12 Version 5 0

BIS
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

w Audited accounts

Audited accounts Have the accounts been audnted in accordance with a set of generally accepted
auditing standards?

Please tck the appropriate box

B/Nofﬁo to Part 3 ‘Signature’
Yes Please enter the name of the organisation or other body which issued

those standards below, and then go to Part 3 "Signature’

N f at
o:;z;grgams 1on |\FQSS . P\Q%s

© Please insert the name of the
appropnate accounting
organisation o7 body

E Unaudited accounts

Unaudited accounts | Is the company required to have its accounts audited?
Please tick the appropriate box
(1 No
1 Yes

Part 3 Signature

| I am signing this form on behalf of the overseas company

Signature Sgnature

X A_ng‘ X

This form may be signed by
Durecter, Secretary, Permanent fepresentative

CHFPOOD
05/12 Version 50
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B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact mformation, but 1f
you do it will help Companies House if there is a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record

T B0 R\ CHALL
T NOLTAERN WY H WD
LAMLTERD

I Address

Post town

County/Region

I B N A
e OF (A

,nx

Telephone

OVl 6B ADG

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

O The company name and, if appropnate, the
registered number, match the information held on
the public Register

21 You have completed all sections of the form,
if appropriate

O You have signed the form

Please note that all this information will appear
on the public record

E Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies
House address

England and Wales

The Regtstrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 {Legal Post)

Northern Ireland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
5econd Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 N R Belfast 1

ﬂ Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enquines@companieshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been provided free of charge by Companies House

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 5 0




